
Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am

VelasqM
Typewritten Text
3



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Weliness Clinic
Lobby ____ ioo 1
Reception Ofilce 85 1

E Meeting_Room i~ 1
‘Weilness Clinic Ofllces 180 2

Exam Rooms 180 2
UA Lab/Restroom 125 1
Break_Room 80 1
Circulation/Storage/Mech 590

F Subte .1 1490

1,490

‘I

6’

SHEET NUMBER

All

Dept I Occupancy 1~AiFijjt~J

Total Approx. Gross SF

HVAC

1~J

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



•6

EAST ELEVATION SOUTH ELEVATION

.4ic..

NORTH ELEVATION

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



L

~I PL~N

~~-:.• S FM 973
4-

r
111= .I_311 El

4•.

1~

SRCC

TCCC
COMPLEX

I:

PROPOSED
WELLNESS

CLRNIC

SI~EF NUMBER

A1.O

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



TRAVIS COUNTY 
PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
                   § 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS  § 
 
THIS CONTRACT OF SALE (“Contract”) is made by and between GRASON VOLENTE INVESTMENTS, LTD., a 
Texas limited partnership ("Seller") and, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, a political subdivision of the State of Texas, 
("Buyer"), hereinafter sometimes collectively referred to as the “Parties” or individually as a “Party,” for the 
consideration and upon and subject to the terms, provisions, and conditions hereinafter set forth. 
 

Background Information 
 

A. Seller is the owner of approximately 1,100.00 acres of real property in Travis County, Texas, more 
particularly described in the attached Exhibits “A” and “B” (referred to herein as the “Permitted 
Tract”).  The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service ("USFWS") issued an Endangered Species Act 
Section 10(a)(1)B Federal Fish and Wildlife Permit No. TE 806831, as amended, hereinafter 
referred to as the “Specific Permit.”  The Specific Permit allows, among other things, for the 
incidental “taking” of the golden-cheeked warbler and black-capped vireo on the Permitted Tract 
and adjacent property covered under the Specific Permit.  Condition 11.G. of the Specific Permit 
requires the permittee under the Specific Permit to convey in fee simple approximately 827 
undeveloped acres (“Mitigation Tract”) to Travis County or other conservation entity as approved 
by USFWS. 

 
B. Buyer is a party to the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement dated August 3, 1995 between Travis 

County (“Buyer,” herein) and the City of Austin implementing the Balcones Canyonlands 
Conservation Plan Shared Vision (the "Regional Plan").  The Regional Plan is outlined and 
described in the "Habitat Conservation Plan and Environmental Impact Statement" dated March, 
1996, between the City of Austin and Travis County.  The City of Austin and Travis County are 
referred to in the Regional Plan as the "Permit Holders" and are sometimes referred to in this 
Conservation Easement collectively as the "Regional Plan Permit Holders."  The Balcones 
Canyonlands Coordinating Committee (the "Coordinating Committee") is an entity which was 
created pursuant to Section 791.013 of the Texas Government Code and established by Travis 
County and the City of Austin to implement and administer the Regional Plan. 

 
C. The Mitigation Tract is in a substantially undisturbed natural and open space condition, and 

USFWS has determined that the Mitigation Tract contains natural habitat of the golden-cheeked 
warbler and black-capped vireo.  The golden-cheeked warbler and black-capped vireo have been 
listed as endangered species under the Federal Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended, 16 
USC Section 1531 et seq. (the "Act"). 

 
D. The Coordinating Committee administers the Regional Plan under the terms of the regional permit 

issued by USFWS under its Permit No. PRT 788841 on May 2, 1996 (the "Regional Permit").  In 
accordance with the Regional Plan and under the terms of the Regional Permit, the Regional Plan 
Permit Holders operate and maintain a regional endangered species habitat preserve known as the 
Balcones Canyonlands Preserve (the "Regional Preserve"). 

 
E. In accordance with Condition 11.G. of the Specific Permit, Seller now desires to convey the 

Mitigation Tract to Buyer on the terms and conditions set forth herein, and Buyer agrees to accept 
the Mitigation Tract conveyed hereunder on the terms and conditions set forth herein for inclusion 
in the Regional Preserve under the terms of the Regional Plan and in accordance with the Regional 
Permit.  

 
F. Seller shall retain and reserve on or against the “Mitigation Tract” at Closing all of the following: 

 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



(i)  a license for use by any and all future residents upon the Permitted Tract which is not included 
within the Mitigation Tract and which is more particularly described in Exhibit “B” attached 
hereto (the “Retained Tract”), and their accompanied invitees and guests, only over certain 
trails over and across the Mitigation Tract (the “Approved Trails”) as more particularly shown 
on the sketch map attached as Schedule D-1 to the form of Special Warranty Deed attached 
hereto as Exhibit "C" and upon the terms and conditions set forth and described in Schedule 
D-2 to the form of Special Warranty Deed attached hereto as Exhibit "C" (collectively the 
“Approved Trails License”), with all rights of such residents and their accompanied guests to 
utilize the Approved Trails pursuant to the terms of the Approved Trails License being herein 
called the “Reserved Rights,” with such license creating and evidencing the Reserved Rights 
being permanent and irrevocable except as otherwise expressly provided in Schedule D-2 to 
the form of Special Warranty Deed attached hereto as Exhibit "C"; 

 
(ii)  an “open space” use restriction upon the terms and conditions set forth in Schedule E to the 

form of Special Warranty Deed attached hereto as Exhibit "C" (the “Open Space and Other 
Use Restrictions”); 

 
(iii) the post-Closing obligation of Buyer to promptly execute and deliver to applicable 

governmental authorities the final subdivision plat(s) covering and including those portions of 
the Mitigation Tract described in Exhibits “A-2,” “A-3” and “A-4” attached hereto (the “Plat 
and Other Instrument Joinder Obligation”) when requested by Seller after Closing, all in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in Schedule F in the form of Special 
Warranty Deed attached hereto as Exhibit "C"; and  

 
(iv) to the extent not previously granted by Seller the Brushy Creek Regional Water Authority 

prior to Closing, a 25’  waterline easement covering approximately 1.008 acres, as more 
particularly described by metes and bounds attached hereto as Exhibit “D” (the “Regional 
Waterline Easement”), for use by the Brushy Creek Regional Water Authority for 
construction, installation, replacement, upgrade, operation, and maintenance of a regional 
water line (with Buyer hereby acknowledging that notwithstanding any other provision herein 
to the contrary, at Seller’s option, Seller shall be entitled to convey the Regional Waterline 
Easement to the Brushy Creek Regional Water Authority any time prior to Closing).   

 
G. Seller shall convey the Mitigation Tract subject to an approximately 2.50-acre existing life estate in 

favor of Jo R. Kimbro, the terms and conditions of said life estate being more particularly described in 
deed from Charles Lee Dwyer and Jo R. Kimbro dated June 10, 2005, and recorded in Doc. No. 
2005103984, Official Public Records, Travis County, Texas (the “Dwyer Life Estate”).  Seller shall 
retain all duties of maintenance and service required to Jo R. Kimbro under the terms of the Dwyer 
Life Estate.  Seller releases and will indemnify Buyer from any obligation to provide maintenance, 
service or any duty or liability to Jo R. Limbro.   

 
H. Additionally, Seller intends to construct and install for operation and maintenance by the Volente 

Municipal Utility District (the “MUD”) a wastewater treatment facility (the “Wastewater 
Treatment Plant”) and water storage facility (the “Water Storage Facility”) on a portion of Seller’s 
remaining property not included within the Mitigation Tract for purposes of providing water and 
wastewater service to the Retained Tract.  In connection therewith, prior to the purchase and 
conveyance of the Mitigation Tract, Seller shall grant to the MUD the following described 
easements over and across the Mitigation Tract (collectively the “MUD Service Easements”) at 
specific locations, in the form of the respective easement instruments attached as the applicable 
Exhibits hereto, and the conveyance of the Mitigation Tract to Buyer at Closing will be subject to 
such MUD Service Easements: 

 
(i) the temporary drip irrigation field easement initially covering approximately 82.939 acres, to 

allow for final design and construction, said acreage being more particularly described by 
metes and bounds in the form of the Drip Irrigation Field Easement attached hereto as Exhibit 
“E” (the “Drip Irrigation Field Easement”), serving the Wastewater Treatment Plant, and 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



which final configuration of the Drip Irrigation Field Easement shall not exceed 55 acres and 
for which such 55-acre easement shall be a final and permanent easement; 

 
(ii) the 15’ wide wastewater line/access easement covering approximately 0.598 acres, said 

acreage being more particularly described by metes and bounds in the form of the Drip 
Irrigation Field Wastewater Line/Access Easement attached hereto as Exhibit “F” (the “Drip 
Irrigation Field Wastewater Line/Access Easement”); 

 
(iii) the water quality buffer easement covering approximately 0.831 acres, said acreage being 

more particularly described by metes and bounds in the form of the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Water Quality Buffer Easement attached hereto as Exhibit “G”, pertaining to the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (the “Wastewater Treatment Plant Water Quality Buffer 
Easement”);   

 
(iv)  the water quality buffer easement covering approximately 0.321 acres, said acreage being 

more particularly described by metes and bounds in the form of the Water Storage Facility 
Water Quality Buffer Easement attached hereto as Exhibit “H”, pertaining to the Water 
Storage Facility  (the “Water Storage Facility Water Quality Buffer Easement”);  

 
(v)  the drainage easement for stormwater pond covering approximately 20.195 acres, said acreage 

being more particularly described by metes and bounds in the form of the Stormwater Pond 
Drainage Easement attached hereto as Exhibit “I” (the “Stormwater Pond Drainage 
Easement”);   

 
(vi) the 15’ wide access easement to the Stormwater Pond Drainage Easement area covering 

approximately 1.286 acres, said acreage being more particularly described by metes and 
bounds in the form of the Stormwater Pond Access Easement attached hereto as Exhibit “J” 
(the “Stormwater Pond Access Easement”);  

 
(vii) the permanent waterline and other utility easement covering approximately 0.816 acres, said 

easement being (i) 16’ wide to the extent contiguous with the north boundary of the 
Mitigation Tract, and (ii) 25’ wide from the north boundary of the Mitigation Tract until the 
interior termination point of said easement, together with a related 25’ temporary construction 
easement covering approximately 1.129 acres, said 0.816-acre and 1.129-acre tracts being 
more particularly described by metes and bounds in the form of the Waterline and Other 
Utility Easement attached hereto as Exhibit “K” (the “Waterline and Other Utility 
Easement”); and 

 
(viii) the 20’ wide electric utility power line easement covering approximately 1.329 acres, said 

acreage being more particularly described by metes and bounds in the form of the Electric 
Utility Easement attached hereto as Exhibit “L” (the “Electric Utility Easement”), for 
purposes of use by third-party providers for electric utility services necessary for operation of 
the Wastewater Treatment Plant and the Water Storage Facility.   

 
 NOW THEREFORE, Seller and Buyer agree as follows:   
 
SECTION I - PURCHASE AND SALE 
 
The Seller hereby agrees to sell and convey to Buyer and Buyer agrees to purchase the Mitigation Tract, together with all 
improvements and fixtures located thereon, and all rights, privileges, and appurtenances pertaining thereto, including any  
interest in appurtenant easements, strips, gores, alleys, and adjoining streets and roads, hereinafter collectively called the  
“Mitigation Tract” containing approximately 826.546 of land, as more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and made a part hereof.   

 
 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



SECTION II – CONSIDERATION 
 
The consideration for Seller's conveyance to Buyer of the Mitigation Tract includes the following: 
 
A. Buyer's assumption of the obligation to (i) manage the Mitigation Tract as a part of the Regional Preserve and 

(ii) perform the operation, management, and monitoring of the Mitigation Tract in accordance with a BCP Tier 
II-A Management Plan (the “BCP Land Management Plan”). 

 
B. Seller’s reservation of (i) the Approved Trails Licenses and the related Reserved Rights in perpetuity over and 

across the Mitigation Tract, at the specific locations of the trails as shown in Schedule D-1 to the form of 
Special Warranty Deed attached hereto as Exhibit “C”, for ingress and egress over and across the Mitigation 
Tract on the trails for any and all future residents of the Retained Tract and their accompanied guests, (ii) 
the Open Space and Other Use Restrictions, (iii) the Plat and Other Instrument Joinder Obligation, and (iv) 
the Regional Waterline Easement, to the extent the Regional Waterline Easement is not previously granted 
by Seller prior to Closing. 

 
C. Buyer’s agreement to accept the Mitigation Tract subject to (i) the Dwyer Life Estate and (ii) the MUD 

Service Easements for the construction, installation, replacement, operation, and maintenance of the 
facilities described and provided for therein.   

 
D. Other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby expressly 

acknowledged. 
 
Concurrently with Closing, Seller and Buyer will jointly notify USFWS of the conveyance of the Mitigation Tract 
and that Buyer will continue to (i) manage the Mitigation Tract in accordance with the terms and conditions of the 
Regional Permit, as a part of the Regional Preserve and (ii) perform the operation, management, and monitoring of the 
Mitigation Tract in accordance with the BCP Land Management Plan, the foregoing obligations of Buyer to survive 
Closing.  However, Buyer will not assume or perform any obligations of Seller under the Specific Permit. 
 
SECTION III - COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE & SURVEY 
 
A. Seller and Buyer acknowledge that prior to the Effective Date, Seller has obtained and delivered to Buyer a 

Commitment for Title Insurance (the "Commitment") issued by LandAmerica Austin Title Company, 
13450 Research Blvd., Suite 102, Austin, Texas  78750, Attention: Ms. Paula Bacon (the “Title Company”) 
and legible copies of all recorded instruments affecting the Mitigation Tract and recited as exceptions in the 
Commitment.  Seller and Buyer acknowledge that prior to the Effective Date, Seller delivered to Buyer  
copies of Seller’s existing surveys covering the parcels within the Mitigation Tract and the Retained Tract.  
Buyer, at Buyer’s sole cost and expense, may have obtained an update of such survey prior to the Effective 
Date (such existing survey, as updated (if applicable), being herein called the “Survey”) prepared by a 
Texas registered professional land surveyor (“Surveyor”). Notwithstanding anything contained herein to 
the contrary, Buyer objects to, and Seller agrees to use good faith efforts to have all items on Schedule C of 
the Commitment deleted from the Commitment prior to or at closing (“Closing”).  Any other objections of 
Buyer to the Commitment or the Survey shall be provided to Seller in writing within twenty (20) days after 
the Effective Date.  If not timely made by Buyer, then such objections shall be deemed waived and Buyer 
shall proceed to Closing. If timely made, and Seller in its sole discretion determines that it is unwilling or 
unable to cure such objections, Seller may provide notice of termination to Buyer within five (5) days of 
receipt of Buyer’s objections to title, unless Buyer waives said objections.  In the event of such termination, 
neither Party shall owe any obligations to the other Party except for those obligations described herein 
which survive the termination of this Contract.  The Parties agree and acknowledge that the title matters set 
forth in Schedule B to the Commitment to which Buyer fails to object or to which Buyer subsequently 
waives any objection shall be “Permitted Exceptions” to the conveyance described above to the extent the 
same are currently in force and effect and applicable to the Mitigation Tract.  The Parties agree and 
acknowledge that the matters set forth on the Survey to which Buyer fails to object or to which Buyer 
subsequently waives any objection shall be “Permitted Exceptions” to the conveyance described above to 
the extent the same are currently in force and effect and applicable to the Mitigation Tract.  The Parties 
further agree and acknowledge that the Approved Trails License, the Open Space and Other Use 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Restrictions, the Plat and Other Instrument Joinder Obligation, the Regional Waterline Easement, the 
Dwyer Life Estate and the MUD Service Easements shall also be “Permitted Exceptions” to the 
conveyance described above.  In accordance with established Buyer policy, the Executive Manager of the 
Travis County Transportation and Natural Resources Department (the “Executive Manager”) may waive 
any title matters shown on Schedule B of the Commitment or Survey. 

 
B. The Seller shall perform, observe, and comply with all of the covenants, agreements, and conditions required to 

be performed by Seller prior to Closing under the terms of this Contract prior to or as of the Closing. 
 
C. The Parties agree to work in good faith with each other to resolve any title matters within the time frames set 

forth herein.  
 
SECTION IV – FEASIBILITY AND RIGHT TO TERMINATE 
 
A. Beginning on the Effective Date and ending thirty (30) days following the Effective Date (hereinafter 

referred to as the “Inspection Period”), Buyer shall have the right to enter on and inspect and investigate the 
Mitigation Tract, and make such tests and take such soil and other samples as Buyer deems reasonably 
necessary or appropriate to establish the baseline environmental and geophysical condition of the 
Mitigation Tract.  Seller shall provide Buyer a copy of any environmental or geophysical condition reports 
relating to the Mitigation Tract in Seller’s possession.  Prior to the Effective Date, Seller has made the 
following documents (if any) available to Buyer for inspection: (i) any leases covering any of the 
Mitigation Tract; and (ii) any service, maintenance or management agreements relating to the ownership 
and operation of the Mitigation Tract.  Buyer, to the extent allowed by Texas law, shall be responsible for 
any damages or injuries arising from Buyer’s inspection of the Mitigation Tract.  All inspections shall be 
conducted during the normal business hours, or during such other times agreed upon by Seller and Buyer, 
and shall be conducted so as not to unreasonably interfere with use of the Mitigation Tract by Seller.   

 
B. Seller agrees that, in the event Buyer determines that the Mitigation Tract is not suitable for its purposes for 

any reason whatsoever, Buyer shall have the right to terminate this Contract by sending written notice 
thereof (hereinafter referred to as the “Notice of Termination”) to Seller prior to the expiration of the 
Inspection Period.  Upon delivery by Buyer of such Notice of Termination within the Inspection Period, 
this Contract shall terminate.  If Buyer fails to send Seller a Notice of Termination prior to the expiration of 
the Inspection Period, Buyer shall no longer have any right to terminate this Contract pursuant hereto.  

 
SECTION V – FUNDING OF MANAGEMENT OBLIGATIONS; FENCING AND TRASH REMOVAL 
OBLIGATIONS 
 
A. Seller agrees to pay Buyer projected operation and maintenance costs for the Mitigation Tract in the 

amounts and within the applicable time periods more particularly described in Exhibit “N” attached hereto 
(the “O&M Costs”).   If Seller fails to make any payments of the O&M Costs when due and such failure 
continues for more than twenty (20) days after written notice thereof from Buyer, Buyer may exercise all 
rights available to Buyer at law or in equity.   

 
B. Seller shall comply, or shall pay Buyer to comply, with the Fencing Requirements set out in Exhibit “M” 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the “Fencing Requirement”), and the post-Closing 
rights of Seller with respect to the Mitigation Tract will expressly include the right to perform all of the 
obligations required to be performed by Seller under the Fencing Requirements. 

 
C. Prior to Closing, Seller will remove from the Mitigation Tract all trash and dumped materials located as of 

the Effective Date at the specific trash and dump sites described in that certain Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment for the Mitigation Tract prepared for Buyer by Wareing & Associates Inc., under WAI Project 
No. 208-01-015, dated July, 2008 (the “Buyer’s Phase I Report”).  Seller shall keep construction trash out 
of the Mitigation Tract during utility and residential construction on the Retained Tract.   

 
D. Seller's obligations under this Section V shall survive Closing. 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



SECTION VI – LIMITED REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SELLER 
 

OTHER THAN THE SPECIAL WARRANTY TO BE MADE IN THE DEED TO BE 
DELIVERED AT CLOSING AND AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS CONTRACT THAT 
SURVIVE CLOSING (THE "EXPRESS WARRANTIES"), BUYER ACKNOWLEDGES AND 
AGREES THAT SELLER HAS NOT MADE, AND SPECIFICALLY NEGATES AND 
DISCLAIMS, ANY REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, PROMISES, COVENANTS, 
AGREEMENTS OR GUARANTIES OF ANY KIND OR CHARACTER WHATSOEVER, 
WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, ORAL OR WRITTEN, PAST, PRESENT OR FUTURE, 
OF, AS TO, CONCERNING OR WITH RESPECT TO (i) THE VALUE, NATURE, QUALITY 
OR CONDITION OF THE MITIGATION TRACT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, 
THE WATER, SOIL AND GEOLOGY, (ii) THE INCOME TO BE DERIVED FROM THE 
MITIGATION TRACT, (iii) THE SUITABILITY OF THE MITIGATION TRACT FOR ANY 
AND ALL ACTIVITIES AND USES WHICH BUYER MAY CONDUCT THEREON, (iv) THE 
COMPLIANCE OF SELLER WITH REGARD TO THE MITIGATION TRACT OR THE 
MITIGATION TRACT ITSELF WITH ANY LAWS, RULES, ORDINANCES, ZONING 
REQUIREMENTS OR REGULATIONS OF ANY APPLICABLE GOVERNMENTAL 
AUTHORITY OR BODY OR WITH ANY APPLICABLE DEED RESTRICTIONS, (v) THE 
HABITABILITY, MERCHANTABILITY, MARKETABILITY, PROFITABILITY OR 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF THE MITIGATION TRACT, (vi) THE 
MANNER, QUALITY, STATE OF REPAIR OR LACK OF REPAIR OF THE MITIGATION 
TRACT, OR (vii) ANY OTHER MATTER WITH RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY. BUYER 
FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT HAVING BEEN GIVEN THE 
OPPORTUNITY TO INSPECT THE MITIGATION TRACT PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF THIS 
CONTRACT, BUYER IS RELYING SOLELY ON ITS OWN INVESTIGATION OF THE 
MITIGATION TRACT AND NOT ON ANY INFORMATION PROVIDED OR TO BE 
PROVIDED BY SELLER, AND AT CLOSING AGREES TO ACCEPT THE MITIGATION 
TRACT “AS-IS” AND WITH ALL FAULTS.  BUYER FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES AND 
AGREES THAT ANY INFORMATION PROVIDED AND TO BE PROVIDED WITH 
RESPECT TO THE MITIGATION TRACT WAS OBTAINED FROM A VARIETY OF 
SOURCES AND THAT SELLER HAS NOT MADE ANY INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION 
OR VERIFICATION OF SUCH INFORMATION, AND MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS AS 
TO THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF SUCH INFORMATION.  ACCORDINGLY, 
EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES, SELLER WILL NOT BE LIABLE OR BOUND 
IN ANY MANNER BY ANY VERBAL OR WRITTEN STATEMENTS, REPRESENTATIONS 
OR INFORMATION PERTAINING TO THE MITIGATION TRACT, OR THE OPERATION 
THEREOF FURNISHED BY ANY REAL ESTATE BROKER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE, 
SERVANT OR OTHER PERSON. BUYER FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES 
THAT TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE SALE OF THE 
MITIGATION TRACT AS PROVIDED FOR HEREIN IS MADE ON AN "AS IS" CONDITION 
AND BASIS WITH ALL FAULTS.  IT IS UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT THE 
CONSIDERATION FOR THE CONVEYANCE OF THE MITIGATION TRACT HAS 
NEGOTIATED TO REFLECT THAT ALL OF THE MITIGATION TRACT IS SOLD BY 
SELLER AND PURCHASED BY BUYER SUBJECT TO THE FOREGOING.  THE 
PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION SHALL SURVIVE THE CLOSING. 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Seller hereby represents and warrants to Buyer as follows: 
 
A. Except as provided for in the Permitted Exceptions or as may be revealed by a survey or an on the ground 

inspection of the Mitigation Tract, to Seller’s knowledge, no person resides on or uses any portion of the 
Mitigation Tract as lessee, tenant at sufferance, or trespasser; 

 
B. As of the Effective Date, Seller is the fee simple owner of the title to the Mitigation Tract and is duly authorized 

and empowered to convey the Mitigation Tract to Buyer; 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



C. To Seller’s knowledge, Seller has paid, or shall cause to be paid by Closing, all taxes, charges, debts, and other 
assessments due by the Seller with respect to the Mitigation Tract (other than any “roll back” or other similar 
taxes attributable to periods prior to Closing, but not yet assessed by the applicable taxing authorities as of 
Closing, for which Seller shall not have any obligation to pay, whether at or after Closing, since the Mitigation 
Tract will be removed from the tax rolls after Closing); 

 
D. To Seller’s knowledge, there will be no unrecorded liens, mortgages, loans, Uniform Commercial Code liens, 

or other encumbrances against any of the Mitigation Tract, other than the Permitted Exceptions;  
 
E.  To Seller’s knowledge, except as specifically described in the Buyer’s Phase I Report, there are no hazardous 

materials on the Mitigation Tract. 
 
F. Except for the grant of the MUD Easements and the Regional Waterline Easement, between the Effective Date 

and Closing, Seller shall not further encumber, or allow the encumbrance of, the title to the Mitigation Tract or 
modify the terms or conditions of any existing encumbrances, if any, without written consent of Buyer.  

 
G. Except for the prior lawsuit between Seller and the Village of Volente, Texas (the “Village”) regarding the 

Village’s approval of the preliminary plan for the Retained Tract, Seller has no knowledge of any pending or 
threatened litigation arising out of or connected to the Mitigation Tract, including but not limited to any 
condemnation proceedings; and 

 
H. Except for the statutes and regulations that govern the issuance of the Specific Permit, Seller has no knowledge 

of any statute, ordinance, code, regulation, or order with respect to the ownership or use of the Mitigation Tract.   
 
For purposes of this Section VI, any reference to Seller’s knowledge shall mean the actual current knowledge, without 
duty of any investigation, of Greg Hammonds, a Vice President of the general partner of Seller.  It is agreed that the 
acceptable baseline condition of the Mitigation Tract will be as described in Schedule C in the form of Special Warranty 
Deed attached hereto as Exhibit "C" and incorporated herein by reference, provided that such baseline condition shall 
not limit or prevent the exercise by Seller of the Reserved Rights in accordance with the provisions of this Contract.   
 
SECTION VII - CLOSING 
 
A. The Parties will finalize the transaction by Closing on or before the later to occur of (a) thirty (30) days 

after final approval by the Travis County Commissioner’s Court of this Contract or (b) five (5) business 
days after final unconditional approval by the Village of (i) the preliminary plan for the development of the 
Retained Tract previously submitted by Seller to the Village and which has been contingently approved by 
the Village, and (ii) the planned approval district zoning application for the Retained Tract previously 
submitted by Seller to the Village, which date is hereinafter referred to as the “Closing Date;” provided, 
however, if the Closing Date has not occurred on or prior to March 1, 2009, then either Seller or Buyer 
shall be entitled to terminate this Contract by written notice to the other Party, whereupon the Parties shall 
have no further rights or obligations hereunder, except for the obligations of the applicable Parties that 
expressly survive the termination of this Contract in accordance with the terms hereof: 

 
1. by mutual agreement in writing between Seller and Buyer, acting by and through its Executive 

Manager;  
 

2. unilaterally by the Buyer for a period of up to fifteen (15) days in order to allow sufficient time for the 
title and survey objection and approval process by delivery of a notice to Seller from the Buyer’s 
Executive Manager on or before the Closing Date; or 

 
3. unilaterally by Buyer for a period of up to ten (10) days in order to allow for the preparation of 

Closing documents by delivery of a notice to Seller from Buyer's Executive Manager on or before the 
Closing Date. 

 
If Buyer wishes to extend the Closing unilaterally in accordance with the foregoing provisions, Buyer shall mail written 
notice of such extension to Seller prior to the originally scheduled Closing Date set out above.  

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



 
B. At the Closing, Seller shall deliver to Buyer the following: 
 

1. A duly executed and acknowledged Special Warranty Deed in the form and substance as the form of 
Warranty Deed attached hereto as Exhibit "C" and incorporated herein as if set out at length, 
conveying good and indefeasible title in fee simple to all of the Mitigation Tract, as set forth in said 
Deed, free and clear of any and all liens, encumbrances, conditions, easements, assessments, 
reservations and restrictions, except as permitted herein and/or waived by Buyer in writing prior to 
Closing.  

 
2. A duly executed and acknowledged nonexclusive access easement in favor of Buyer, upon term and 

conditions reasonably acceptable to Buyer and Seller, for purposes of ingress and egress to and from 
the Mitigation Tract over and across the surface of the 0.904-acre tract more particularly described by 
metes and bounds attached hereto as Exhibit “A-6”.  

 
3. An Owner's Policy of Title Insurance (the "Title Policy"), with one-half of the premium cost thereof to 

be paid by Buyer and the other one-half of the premium cost thereof to be paid by Seller, to be issued 
by the Title Company at the agreed value of the Mitigation Tract, which is hereby stipulated and 
agreed to by Seller and Buyer as $8,265,460.00 dated as of the Closing, insuring Buyer’s title to the 
Mitigation Tract to be good and indefeasible, subject only to the Permitted Exceptions and those title 
exceptions contained in the standard, printed form allowed by the State Department of Insurance. 

 
 4. Evidence of its capacity and authority for the Closing of this transaction. 
 

5. All signed, reasonably necessary releases, affidavits, and other reasonably necessary documents to 
close this transaction, including without limitation a “FIRPTA Affidavit”, stating Seller is not a 
“foreign person”, as defined in the Federal Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act of 1980 and 
the 1984 Tax Reform Act.  

 
6. Possession of the Mitigation Tract, subject to the Permitted Exceptions, including without limitation, 

the Dwyer Life Estate, the Open Space and Other Use Restrictions, the Plat and Other Instrument 
Joinder Obligation, the Regional Waterline Easement, the MUD Service Easements and the Reserved 
Rights. 

 
7. Evidence that all general real estate taxes for the then current year relating to that portion of the 

Mitigation Tract, which is conveyed in fee, and interest on any existing indebtedness prorated to the 
day of Closing have been paid.  (NOTE:  PRORATIONS WILL BE BASED UPON THE MOST 
CURRENTLY AVAILABLE TAX INFORMATION.  TAXES WILL BE PAID AT CLOSING, 
AND, THEREAFTER, THAT PORTION OF THE MITIGATION TRACT, WHICH IS 
CONVEYED IN FEE, WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE TAX ROLLS).  

 
8. Evidence that all special taxes or assessments then due and payable, relating to the portion of the 

Mitigation Tract, which is conveyed in fee, prorated to the Closing Date shall be paid by Seller, it 
being agreed that Seller shall have no liability or payment obligation, whether at or after Closing, for 
any “roll back” or other similar taxes attributable to periods prior to Closing since the Mitigation Tract 
will be removed from the tax rolls after Closing. 

 
9.  A duly executed and acknowledged assignment of that certain Site Lease with Option dated Feburary 

2, 1999, between Volente Group of Texas, Ltd., as landlord, and Western PCS  BTA I Corporation, as 
tenant (the “Cell Tower Lease”), in the form of Exhibit “O” attached hereto (the “Cell Tower Lease 
Assignment”), whereby Seller assigns to Buyer all of Seller’s right, title and interest under the Cell 
Tower Lease, subject to the terms of that certain letter agreement dated December ___, 2008 by and 
between Seller and Jo R. Kimbro, pursuant to which one-half (1/2) of all payments by the tenant under 
the Cell Tower Lease are to be promptly paid and remitted to Jo R. Kimbro (the “Kimbro Letter 
Agreement”).   

 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



10. Evidence reasonably satisfactory to Buyer that the trash and dumped materials required to be removed 
by Seller under the terms of Section V.C. above have been removed from the Mitigation Tract. 

 
C. The Seller shall pay all cost of releasing existing loans and liens or other encumbrances (other than Permitted 

Exceptions), its attorney's fees, one-half (1/2) of the owner's title policy premium for the Title Policy, and all 
other expenses stipulated to be paid by the Seller under other provisions of this Contract. 

 
D. At the Closing, Buyer shall perform the following: 
 

1. Execute and deliver to Seller the Cell Tower Lease Assignment, whereby Buyer agrees to assume the 
obligations of landlord under the Cell Tower Lease and the obligations of Seller under the Kimbro 
Letter Agreement. 

  
2. Sign any other documents a buyer would normally sign to close a similar transaction. 

 
3. Pay one-half (1/2) of the cost of the Title Policy premium. 

 
4. Deliver to Seller a certified copy of the minutes of the Commissioners Court (or other reasonably 

satisfactory evidence), reflecting the approval of this Contract by the Commissioners Court. 
 

E. In addition to the foregoing Closing requirements, the Parties acknowledge and agree that the Mitigation Tract 
will be conveyed at Closing subject to the Dwyer Life Estate, and Seller shall retain and reserve in Seller’s 
Deed to be delivered at Closing, the following:   

 
1. The Approved Trails License and the Reserved Rights related thereto;  

 
2. The Open Space and Other Use Restrictions; 
 
3. The Plat and Other Instrument Joinder Obligation; and  

 
4. The Regional Waterline Easement, to the extent the Regional Waterline Easement is not 

previously granted by Seller prior to Closing.  
 
SECTION VIII - BREACH BY SELLER 
 
A. In the event that Seller shall fail to fully and timely perform any of its obligations hereunder to be performed 

prior to or at Closing, including without limitation, the failure to consummate the sale and conveyance of the 
Mitigation Tract in accordance with the terms of this Contract for any reason, except the Buyer's default, the 
Buyer, as its sole and exclusive remedy for Seller’s default, shall have the right to terminate this Contract by 
providing written notice of such termination to Seller, whereupon the Parties shall have no further rights or 
obligations hereunder, except for the obligations of the applicable Parties that expressly survive the termination 
of this Contract in accordance with the terms hereof. 

 
B. In the event that at any time after the Closing Date Seller should fail to perform any obligations of Seller 

required under the terms of this Contract to be performed by Seller after the Closing Date, and the Buyer not 
being in default hereunder, the Buyer, as its sole and exclusive remedy for such Seller’s default, shall have the 
right to bring suit for specific performance of such defaulted obligations by Seller. 

 
 
SECTION IX - BREACH BY BUYER 
 
A. In the event that Buyer should fail to timely consummate the purchase of the Mitigation Tract, leaving the 

Buyer in default hereunder and the Seller not being in default hereunder, the Seller, as its sole and exclusive 
remedy for such Buyer’s default, shall have the right to terminate this Contract by providing written notice of 
such termination to Buyer, whereupon the Parties shall have no further rights or obligations hereunder, except 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



for the obligations of the applicable Parties that expressly survive the termination of this Contract in accordance 
with the terms hereof. 

 
B. In the event that at any time after the Closing Date Buyer should fail to perform any obligations of Buyer 

required under the terms of this Contract to be performed by Buyer after the Closing Date, and the Seller not 
being in default hereunder, the Seller, as its sole and exclusive remedy for such Buyer’s default, shall have the 
right to bring suit for specific performance of such defaulted obligations by Buyer. 

 
SECTION X – NOTICE OF VIOLATION TO USFWS AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF  
 
Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, as an alternative or in addition to any other remedy provided 
in this Contract, if either Party determines that a violation by Buyer of the terms or conditions of the Regional 
Permit or by Seller of the Specific Permit, but only insofar as the same applies and pertains to the Mitigation Tract, 
has occurred or is threatened, such Party may immediately notify USFWS of such violation and mail a copy of such 
notice to the other Party.  If such violation is not cured within thirty (30) days after the mailing of such notice, the 
Party mailing such notice may bring an action in a court of competent jurisdiction to enforce the terms and 
conditions of such Permit as a requirement of this Contract.   
 
SECTION XI – MEDIATION 
 
When mediation is acceptable to both Parties in resolving a dispute arising under this Contract, the Parties agree to 
use the Dispute Resolution Center of Austin, Texas as the provider of mediators for mediation as described in 
Section 154.023 of the Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code.  Unless both Parties are satisfied with the result of 
the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and binding resolution of the dispute.  All communications 
within the scope of the mediation shall remain confidential as described in Section 154.073 of the Texas Civil 
Practice and Remedies Code, unless both Parties agree, in writing, to waive the confidentiality. 
 
SECTION XII - CONDEMNATION 
 
If, prior to the Closing, any material portion of the Mitigation Tract shall be condemned or threatened to be condemned, 
either Seller or Purchaser may terminate this Agreement by written notice thereof to the other party, whereupon neither 
Party shall owe any obligations to the other Party except for those obligations described herein which survive the 
termination of this Contract.  If neither Seller nor Purchaser elects to terminate this Agreement, then the Closing shall 
take place and there shall be assigned to Purchaser at Closing all of Seller’s interest in and to any condemnation award 
relative to the Mitigation Tract. 
 
SECTION XIII - MISCELLANEOUS 
 
A. Survival of Covenants.  Any of the representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements of the Parties 

pertaining to a period of time following the Closing of the transactions contemplated hereby, shall survive the 
Closing and shall not be merged therein, unless specifically provided to the contrary. 

 
B. Notice.  Any notice to be given hereunder by either Party to the other shall be in writing and may be effected by 

personal delivery or registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper Party, at the 
following address: 

 
Seller:   Grason Volente Investments, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership  
   c/o Grason Communities, Ltd. 
   7171 Highway 6 North, Suite #100 

Houston, TX 77095 
   Attention:  Greg Hammonds, Vice President 

 
with copies to:  David A. Hartman, Esq. 
   Smith, Robertson, Elliott, Glen, Klein & Bell, L.L.P. 
   221 West 6th Street, Suite 1100 
   Austin, TX 78701 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



 
and 

     L. Jeffrey Hubenak, Esq. 
Locke Lord Bissell & Liddell LLP 
100 Congress Avenue, Suite 300 
Austin, TX  78701 

  
  Buyer:   Samuel T. Biscoe (or successor) 
     Travis County Judge 
     P.O. Box 1748 
     Austin, TX  78767 
  
  with copy to:  Honorable David Escamilla (or successor) 

   Travis County Attorney 
   P.O. Box 1748 
   Austin, Texas 78767 
    Attn: File No. 163.1935 

 
C. Texas Law to Apply.  This Contract shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of 

Texas and all obligations of the parties created hereunder are performable in Travis County, Texas. 
 
D. Parties Bound.  This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 

respective legal representatives, successors, and assigns where permitted by this Contract. 
 
E. Legal Construction.  If any of the provisions contained in this Contract shall for any reason be found to be 

invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality, 
or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof and this Contract shall be construed as if such 
invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provisions had never been contained herein. 

 
F. Entire Agreement. 
 

1. This Contract, including any and all exhibits hereto, supersedes any and all other agreements, 
either oral or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter thereof 
and contains all of the covenants and agreements between the Parties with respect to said 
matter. 

 
2. No modification concerning this Contract shall be of any force or effect, excepting a 

subsequent modification in writing signed by the Party to be charged.  NO OFFICIAL, 
REPRESENTATIVE, AGENT, OR EMPLOYEE OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, HAS 
ANY AUTHORITY TO MODIFY THIS CONTRACT, EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY 
SET FORTH HEREIN OR PURSUANT TO EXPRESS AUTHORITY TO DO SO 
GRANTED BY THE COMMISSIONERS COURT OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS. 

 
G. Time of Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Contract. 
 
H. Gender.  Words of any gender used in this Contract shall be held and construed to  

include any other gender and words in the singular number shall be held to include the plural and vice versa, 
unless the Contract requires otherwise. 

 
I. Brokerage Commissions & Liens.  Seller and Buyer each acknowledge that they have not retained a broker in 

connection with purchase and conveyance of this Mitigation Tract. 
 
J. Assignment.  Buyer may not assign its rights, powers, responsibilities and/or obligations under this Contract in 

whole or in part at any time.   Seller may, upon thirty (30) days written notice to Buyer, assign Seller’s rights 
and obligations under this Contract to any person or entity which (i) acquires fee simple title to all of the 
Mitigation Tract from Seller prior to Closing; and (ii) expressly assumes in writing all of Seller’s obligations 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



under this Contract, and once Buyer has been provided with a copy of such written assumption of all of Seller’s 
obligations hereunder, Seller shall have no further rights or obligations as a Party under this Contract.  
Additionally, after the Closing Date, Seller may, upon thirty (30) days written notice to Buyer, assign (a) all or 
any portion of Seller’s post-Closing rights and obligations under this Contract to the MUD, so long as the MUD 
expressly assumes in writing all of such post-Closing obligations of Seller under this Contract then being 
assigned to the MUD, (b) all or any portion of Seller’s post-Closing rights and obligations under this Contract 
to the property owner’s association (“POA”) established in connection with the development of all or a 
majority of the Retained Tract, so long as the POA expressly assumes in writing all of such post-Closing 
obligations of Seller under this Contract then being assigned to the POA, or (c) all of Seller’s post-Closing 
rights and obligations under this Contract, to the extent not previously assigned to the MUD or the POA, to any 
person or entity which purchases or otherwise acquires all or a substantial part of the unsold Retained Tract 
then owned by Seller, so long as such assignee, contemporaneously with the sale or transfer of such unsold 
portion of the Retained Tract, expressly assumes in writing all post-Closing obligations of Seller under this 
Contract being assigned to such assignee, and once Buyer has been provided with a copy of the applicable 
written assumption of the applicable post-Closing obligations of Seller hereunder, Seller shall have no further 
rights or obligations as a Party under this Contract with respect to such post-Closing obligations so assigned by 
Seller. Otherwise, Seller may not assign its rights, powers, responsibilities and/or obligations under this 
Contract in whole or in part at any time without the written approval of Buyer. 

 
K. Multiple Counterparts.  This Contract may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute 

a duplicate original hereof, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
L. Due Authorization.  The person executing this Contract on behalf of Seller hereby warrants and represents to 

Buyer that Seller has approved this Contract and that such person has the power and authority to execute this 
Contract on behalf of Seller and to bind Seller to the terms hereof.  The person executing this Contract on 
behalf of the Buyer hereby warrants and represents to Seller that the Travis County Commissioners’ Court has 
approved this Contract and that such person has the power and authority to execute this Contract on behalf of 
Buyer and to bind Buyer to the terms hereof. 

 
M. Effective Date. For purposes hereof, the “Effective Date” of this Contract shall be the latest date of execution 

hereof by either Party, as shown in the completed dates beneath the respective signature lines of the Parties. 
 
N. Schedule of Exhibits to this Contract.   The following described Exhibits are attached to and are hereby made 

an integral part of this Contract:  
 

Exhibit A –  Mitigation Tract Legal Description 
Exhibit B –  Retained Tract Legal Description 
Exhibit C --   Warranty Deed   
Exhibit D --  Regional Waterline Easement Legal Description 
Exhibit E -- Drip Irrigation Field Easement 
Exhibit F --  Drip Irrigation Field Wastewater Line/Access Easement 
Exhibit G --  Wastewater Treatment Plant Water Quality Buffer Easement 
Exhibit H --  Water Storage Facility Water Quality Buffer Easement  
Exhibit I --  Stormwater Pond Drainage Easement  
Exhibit J --  Stormwater Pond Access Easement  
Exhibit K --  Water Line and Other Utility Easement 
Exhibit L -- Electric Utility Easement  
Exhibit M --  Fencing Requirements 
Exhibit N -- Operations and Maintenance Costs 
Exhibit O -- Cell Tower Lease Assignment  
 

O. Listing of Schedules to form of Warranty Deed.   The following described Schedules are attached to the form of 
Special Warranty Deed attached hereto as Exhibit "C" and are hereby made an integral part of this Contract:  

 
Schedule A –  Mitigation Tract Legal Description 
Schedule B –  Permitted Exceptions 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Schedule C --   Baseline Condition 
Schedule C -1 --   Aerial Photograph(s) of Mitigation Tract   
Schedule D-1 --  Approved Trails License Area 
Schedule D-2 -- Terms and Conditions of Approved Trails License 
Schedule D-3 -- Approved Trails License Benefited Tract 
Schedule E –  Open Space and Other Use Restrictions 
Schedule F –  Plat and Other Instrument Joinder Obligations 
Schedule G – Regional Waterline Easement Legal Description 
 

 
 
    [Remainder of page left intentionally blank]

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXECUTED as of the applicable date set forth below. 
 
 
SELLER: GRASON VOLENTE INVESTMENTS, LTD., 
  a Texas limited partnership 
  
 By:  Grason Communities I, LLC, 
  a Texas limited liability company, 
  its General Partner 
 
  By:        
   Greg Hammonds, Vice President 
 
Date:     , 2008 
 
    
BUYER: TRAVIS COUNTY 
 
  By:                                                                               
   Samuel T. Biscoe, Travis County Judge 
 
Date:  _______________________, 2008 
 
 
 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “A” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 

MITIGATION TRACT DESCRIPTION  
That certain approximately 826.546 acres of land in Travis County, Texas more particularly described in Exhibits 
A-1, A-2, A-3 and A-4 attached hereto. 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “A-1” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 
[Attach 814.635-acre legal description and SAVE AND EXCEPT (i) the 3.037-acre tract described in Exhibit A-5, 
(ii) the 0.904-acre tract described in Exhibit A-6, (iii) the 1.318-acre tract described in Exhibit A-7, and (iv) the 
0.643-acre tract described in Exhibit A-8.] 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “A-2” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 

[Attach 8.952-acre legal description] 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “A-3” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 

[Attach 4.995-acre legal description] 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “A-4” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 

[Attach 3.866-acre legal description] 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “A-5” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 

[Attach 3.037-acre SAVE AND EXCEPT tract legal description] 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “A-6” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 

[Attach  0.904-acre SAVE AND EXCEPT tract legal description]  
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “A-7” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 

[Attach 1.318-acre SAVE AND EXCEPT tract legal description]  
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “A-8” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 

[Attach 0.643-acre SAVE AND EXCEPT tract legal description]  
 
 
 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “B” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 RETAINED TRACT DESCRIPTION 

 
[Attach 297.660-acre legal description] 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “C” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
FORM OF WARRANTY DEED 

 
STATE OF TEXAS § 
               §  KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS §  
 
 That GRASON VOLENTE INVESTMENTS, LTD., a Texas limited partnership, hereinafter referred to as 
"GRANTOR" whether one or more, for and in consideration of the sum of TEN AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($10.00) and 
other valuable consideration to the undersigned paid by Travis County, a political subdivision of the state of Texas, 
hereinafter referred to as "GRANTEE", the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has GRANTED, SOLD, and 
CONVEYED and by these presents does GRANT, SELL, and CONVEY unto the said Travis County, Texas, all of the 
following real property in Travis County, Texas, together with all improvements and fixtures located thereon, and all 
rights, privileges, and appurtenances pertaining thereto, including any interest in appurtenant easements, strips, gores, 
alleys, and adjoining streets and roads (collectively, the “Mitigation Tract”), to wit: 
 

That tract more specifically defined in Schedule “A”, attached hereafter and incorporated herein. 
 
 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described premises, together with all and singular rights and 
appurtenances thereto in any way belonging, unto the said GRANTEE and assigns forever; and GRANTOR does hereby 
bind itself, its representatives, successors, and assigns to WARRANT AND DEFEND FOREVER, all and singular, the 
said premises unto the said GRANTEE and its assigns against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim 
the same or any part hereof, by, through, or under GRANTOR, but not otherwise, subject to the matters set forth in this 
Warranty Deed. 
 
 This conveyance is made subject to: 
 

1. the Permitted Exceptions set forth in Schedule “B” to this Warranty Deed, which Schedule is 
attached hereto and made a part hereof;  

 
2. the obligation of Buyer to maintain the baseline conditions of the Mitigation Tract set forth in 

Schedule “C” to this Warranty Deed, which Schedule is attached hereto and made a part hereof; 
 

3. the Approved Trails License hereby reserved and retained by Grantor over and across the applicable 
portion of the Mitigation Tract more particularly described in Schedule “D-1” to this Warranty Deed 
in accordance with the terms and conditions of said Approved Trails License set forth in Schedule 
“D-2” to this Warranty Deed for the benefit of owners and accompanied guests of the Tract described 
in Schedule “D-3”, which Schedules are attached hereto and made a part hereof; 

 
4. the Open Space and Other Use Restrictions hereby imposed upon the Mitigation Tract in accordance 

with the terms and conditions set forth in Schedule “E” to this Warranty Deed, which Schedule is 
attached hereto and made a part hereof;  

 
5. the Plat Joinder Obligations of Grantee as set forth and described in Schedule “F” attached to this 

Warranty Deed and covering those portions of the Mitigation Tract conveyed hereby that are 
described in Schedules A-2, A-3 and A-4 attached to this Warranty Deed; and 

 
6. [if and to the extent the same has not been conveyed to the Brushy Creek Regional Water 

Authority by Grantor prior to the Closing, the Regional Waterline Easement hereby reserved 
and retained by Grantor and hereby assigned by Grantor to and for the benefit of the Brushy 
Creek Regional Water Authority, said Regional Waterline Easement to cover and affect the 
applicable portion of the Mitigation Tract more particularly described and set forth in Schedule 
“G” to this Warranty Deed].  

 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



 
EXECUTED this        day of ________________________, 200___. 
 
       
GRANTOR: GRASON VOLENTE INVESTMENTS, LTD., 
  a Texas limited partnership  
 
  By: Grason Communities I, LLC 
   a Texas limited liability company. 
   its General Partner 
 
   By:      
    Greg Hammonds, Vice President 
         
 
Date:     , 2008         
 

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

THE STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF     § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on ______________, 2008, by Greg Hammonds, Vice 
President of Grason Communities I, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, as General Partner, of Grason Volente 
Investments, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, on behalf of said partnership. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 
My Commission Expires: 
      Print Name:  _______________________ 
______________________ 
 
 
 
 
Listing of Schedules:    
 
Schedule A –  Mitigation Tract Legal Description 
Schedule B –  Permitted Exceptions 
Schedule C --   Baseline Condition 
Schedule C -1 --   Aerial Photograph(s) of Mitigation Tract   
Schedule D-1 --  Approved Trails License Area 
Schedule D-2 -- Terms and Conditions of Approved Trails License 
Schedule D-3 -- Approved Trails License Benefited Tract 
Schedule E –  Open Space and Other Use Restrictions 
Schedule F –  Plat Joinder Obligations 
Schedule G – Regional Waterline Easement Legal Description 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



SCHEDULE “A” 
TO WARRANTY DEED 

 
 

[Attach metes and bounds legal descriptions in the forms of A-1 through A-8 from the Contract] 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



SCHEDULE “B” 
TO WARRANTY DEED 

PERMITTED EXCEPTIONS 
 

[To be completed]  
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



SCHEDULE “C” 
TO WARRANTY DEED 

 
Baseline Condition of the Mitigation Tract 

 
1. The baseline condition of the Mitigation Tract will be the condition shown in aerial photographs 

of the Mitigation Tract attached hereto as Schedule C-1; provided, however, that such baseline condition shall not 
limit or prevent the exercise by Grantor and the other applicable parties of the rights to utilize the Approved Trails 
License in accordance with the provisions of Schedule D-2 attached to this Warranty Deed. 

 
2.        In addition, Seller and Buyer will deliver to each other within 6 months after the date of the Closing 

copies of any other photographic or video materials which illustrate the condition of the Mitigation Tract on the date 
of the Agreement. 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



SCHEDULE “C-1” 
TO WARRANTY DEED 

 
Aerial photograph(s) of the Mitigation Tract 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



SCHEDULE “D-1” 
TO WARRANTY DEED 

 
Sketch Map of Approved Trails License Area  

 

                                                               [See attached map] 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



SCHEDULE “D-2” 
TO WARRANTY DEED 

 
Terms and Conditions of Approved Trails License  

 
1) Approved Trails Provisions. 
 

a) Allowing/Opening and Prohibiting/Closing Limited Access to Approved Trails.  Grantor, at 
Grantor’s sole discretion, shall have the option to elect to allow access to Approved Trails as 
shown on the Approved Trails License Area in the map attached to this Warranty Deed as 
Schedule “D-1” (“Trails License Map”) by residents of the Retained Tract and their accompanied 
invitees and guests as provided herein.  Grantor shall notify Grantee of any such election of 
Grantor’s option to allow limited access by written notice to Grantee along with payment of 
applicable fees for limited access pursuant to separate agreement between Grantor and Grantee.  
Limited access may proceed no earlier than six (6) months following written notice and payment 
from Grantor to Grantee under this Section 1(a).  Grantor or the POA (hereinafter defined) shall 
have the option to elect to prohibit access to and close the Approved Trails upon written notice to 
Grantee; provided, the POA must obtain written consent from Grantor to any exercise by the POA 
of it’s election to prohibit access to and close the Approved Trails.   

 
b) Trail Use.  Use of the Approved Trails will be limited to passive recreational uses such as hiking, 

nature viewing, and jogging.  No pets are allowed.  No hunting, archery, bike riding, horseback 
riding or camping is allowed. A further explication of the permitted uses and prohibited uses will 
be set out in the “Trail Plan” (hereinafter defined) which shall be developed by the property 
owner’s association (“POA”) established in connection with the development of all or a majority 
of the real property described in Schedule “D-3” attached to this Warranty Deed (the “Retained 
Tract”).  Except for the Approved Trails and access roads associated with the easements 
authorized under the Endangered Species Act Section 10(a)(1)(B) Federal Fish and Wildlife 
Permit No. TE 806831 (as amended, the “Permit”), no new trails, paths, jeep trails or roads shall 
be cleared or added within the Mitigation Tract conveyed to Grantee under the terms of this 
Warranty Deed as mitigation under the Permit (the “Preserve”).  No motorized vehicles will be 
allowed in the Approved Trails except as otherwise authorized by the Permit along easement 
areas, pursuant to emergency, as necessary for trail management activities, or as otherwise 
authorized by Grantee or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.   

 
c) Trail Access.  Access shall be limited to residents of the Retained Tract, and when accompanied 

by a resident, their guests (collectively, “Approved Participants”) subject to this Terms and 
Conditions of Approved Trails License (“Agreement”); provided, Grantee, U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service, and other third parties may enter the Approved Trails for sole purpose of operation, 
management (including monitoring surveys), and related activities.  Access in the Mitigation Tract 
is only allowed on the Approved Trails and not allowed anywhere else in the Mitigation Tract.  
Access by Approved Participants to Approved Trails may be restricted by Grantee (i) during the 
golden-cheeked warbler (“GCWA”) nesting season and black-capped vireo (“BCVI”) nesting 
season, (ii) as deemed necessary by Grantee for management operations including deer 
management time periods, and (iii) as provided in Paragraph 3 of this Agreement.  

 
d) Trail Management and Related.  The foregoing notwithstanding, no access to Approved 

Participants shall be provided to the Approved Trails until Grason Volente Investments, Ltd., as 
Grantor, or the POA provides or causes to be provided the following items, which shall be subject 
to approval by Grantee, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or 
delayed. 

 
i) Management of Limited Access.   Access gates will be constructed at the approved 

access points more particularly shown on the Trails License Map (“Approved Access 
Points”).  A system for controlling entry by Approved Participants will be established, 
such as by requiring a swipe key pad or code for entry.  A permitting system will be 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



established for Approved Participants, and all such Approved Participants will be 
required to wear visible trail permits when on the Approved Trails.  An 
education/orientation session will be required before issuance of the card, permit, or 
passcode to Approved Participants (including resident-accompanied guests of residents) 
to enter the Approved Trails, and Grantee will assist with said education/orientation 
session.  Approved Participants entering the Approved Trails will be required to sign a 
liability release in favor of Grantee.  Grantee will provide the liability release to the POA 
upon its request. 

 
ii) Trails Committee.  Under the authority and control of the POA, a trails committee 

(“Trails Committee”) will be established to maintain the Approved Trails, control erosion 
resulting from the Approved Trails, monitor the actions of the Approved Participants on 
the trail, and enforce trail usage regulations.  The Trails Committee will coordinate all of 
these activities with Grantee. 

 
iii) Signage/Trail Features.  Signs will be installed marking the trail system boundary with 

posted trail rules, any needed directional or mileage signs along the trails.  Signage and 
other needed trail features (such as benches, educational kiosks, and similar items) will 
be coordinated with Grantee. 

 
e) Other. 

 
i) The POA will annually inform or remind its membership and all Approved Participants 

in writing of the GCWA nesting season, the BCVI nesting season, and the applicable 
restrictions and conditions of the Permit, the Trail Plan, and other regulations pertaining 
to the Approved Trails.    

 
ii) The Approved Trails shall not exceed ten feet (10') in width, except for (i) areas where 

the Approved Trails have historically been wider than ten feet (10'); and (ii) the location 
of occasional trailside signage and benches where the trail width shall be no more than 
sixteen feet (16’). All of the Approved Trails and all trail amenities will be designated in 
the Trail Plan.  The Approved Trails may not be expanded beyond the maximum or 
historic widths and lengths.  All signage, kiosks, and benches must be located within the 
sixteen feet (16’) trail width.  No trash receptacles or trash are allowed within the 
Mitigation Tract.  

 
2) Trail Plan. 
 

a) The POA shall develop a plan for the utilization of the Approved Trails (the “Trail Plan”) prior to 
any Approved Participant obtaining access to the Approved Trails.  The Trail Plan will be 
developed with the cooperation of the Grantee and will be subject to Grantee’s approval, which 
shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.  The Trail Plan shall include rules and 
enforcement procedures and sanctions governing the use of the Approved Trails.  If necessary to 
deter or prevent unauthorized third party entry, the Trail Plan shall include provisions for the 
placement of “No Trespassing” signs at the Approved Access Points, and hours of use of 
Approved Trails by residents and their guests.  The Trail Plan will detail the location of all fences, 
gates, barriers, and signs installed or proposed by the Grantor or POA for the control of access to 
the Approved Trails.  The Approved Trails and all amenities proposed for location therein will be 
designated in the Trail Plan.  The Trail Plan shall be reviewed and updated by the POA in 
cooperation with the Grantee and subject to Grantee’s approval at least every five (5) years.  The 
Trail Plan may be amended at any time with the joint consent of POA and Grantee.  The POA may 
(i) impose fees upon POA members and Approved Participants for the usage of the Approved 
Trails, and (ii) suspend, revoke or condition the rights of any of the Approved Participants to use 
the Approved Trails and impose fines on any of the Approved Participants under the terms of any 
restrictions, rules, conditions, requirements, and regulations of any kind which are promulgated by 
the POA from time to time.  Access is only allowed on the Approved Trails.  No swimming or 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



fishing is allowed in any pond or creek.  Violations should be enforced by the POA or Grantee.  
Approved Participants as well as non-approved third parties accessing areas within the Preserve 
substantially outside the Approved Trails may be subject to criminal trespass and penalties by the 
POA.   

 
3) Grantee’s Self-Help Rights:  The use of the Approved Trails will be subject to the following terms, 

conditions and provisions: 
 

a) For purposes of this Paragraph 3, any significant extensive or recurring violation by the Grantor or 
an Approved Participant of the provisions or requirements of this Agreement will be considered to 
be a “Material Violation” if such violation significantly reduces the suitability of the Preserve or 
any substantial portion thereof as habitat for the GCWA or the BCVI.  Examples of the types of 
activities which, if conducted on an extensive or recurring basis by the Grantor or an Approved 
Participant could result in a Material Violation include, without limitation: unauthorized clearing 
or trimming of vegetation; unauthorized construction of new trails or trail widening beyond 
permitted limits of existing trail corridors; unauthorized trail use such as horseback or bike riding; 
violation of requirement of no pets allowed; feeding of deer or other wildlife; violation of no bird 
feeders condition of POA permit; unauthorized off-trail uses; dumping of construction wastes or 
other debris within the Approved Trails or Preserve; unauthorized hunting; failure to adequately 
address any serious trash problems along the Approved Trails; failure to construct the Access 
Point Entries which are required under the terms of this Agreement; failure of Grantor to make the 
payments to Grantee required for Mitigation Tract fencing and Mitigation Tract operation and 
maintenance as agreed to by Grantor and Grantee under separate agreement; failure to control 
ingress and egress at the Approved Access Points due to lack of maintenance of the required 
Access Point Entries; failure of the POA to use reasonable efforts to enforce the rules it 
promulgates under the terms of this Agreement; killing, harming or harassing wildlife; willful 
destruction of fences and gates; and dumping of hazardous materials.  In addition to the foregoing, 
if any of the activities listed in the immediately preceding sentence are conducted on an extensive 
or recurring basis by any authorized third parties, then a “Material Violation” shall be deemed to 
have occurred for the purpose of enabling Grantee to exercise its self-help rights under this 
Paragraph 3, but it is expressly agreed and understood that no activities of any third parties will: 
(i) give rise to or constitute an actual violation of this Agreement; or (ii) subject the Grantor to any 
remedies other than the potential loss of usage rights with respect to the Approved Trails under the 
terms and provisions of this Paragraph 3.  For purposes of the immediately preceding sentence, the 
term “third parties” means parties other than the Grantor and any persons acting by, through or 
under any of the Grantor.  Grantor and Grantee both agree and hereby acknowledge and agree that 
violations of this Agreement that are not significant extensive or recurring violations, and that do 
not significantly reduce the suitability of the Preserve or any substantial portion thereof as habitat 
for the GCWA or the BCVI, shall not be deemed a Material Violation.   

 
b) If Grantee believes that a Material Violation has occurred then Grantee may, without necessity of 

providing any advance notice or opportunity to cure to any party, take such actions as Grantee in 
good faith determines are necessary or appropriate to maintain the viability of the Preserve as 
habitat for the GCWA and the BCVI, up to and including closure and denial of access by the 
Approved Participants to the Approved Trails.  The actions taken by Grantee may include, without 
limitation, any measures less severe than complete closure of the Approved Trails as may be 
determined by Grantee to be necessary or prudent, in Grantee’s sole discretion.  Examples of such 
measures include: (i) closing some but not all of the Approved Trails; and (ii) banning entry onto 
the Approved Trails by individuals who have repeatedly violated any regulation pertaining to 
usage of the Approved Trails.. 

 
c) If Grantee believes that any Material Violation has occurred and Grantee takes action under 

subparagraph 3(b) above, then Grantee shall provide written notice to Grantor and POA of the 
alleged Material Violation and the action which has been taken by Grantee in response thereto.  
Such notice must specify the alleged Material Violation with particularity and must identify the 
steps which Grantee believes are necessary to “Cure” such Material Violation.  For purposes 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



hereof the terms “Cure” and “Cured” shall mean and refer to actions which remedy, remove, 
compensate for or overcome an applicable Material Violation or which have remedied, removed, 
compensated for or overcome an applicable Material Violation; provided, however, that in the 
event of a Material Violation which has occurred or is likely to occur on a repeated basis, the 
action taken to qualify as a “Cure” of the Material Violation must include a plan of action which is 
reasonably acceptable to Grantee and which is designed to prevent or deter future occurrences of 
the applicable Material Violation.  If the Grantor or POA believes that no Material Violation has 
occurred or if the Grantor or POA believes that the actions taken by the Grantee in response to the 
alleged Material Violation are not permitted under the terms of this Agreement or if the Grantor or 
POA believe that the alleged Material Violation has been Cured, then Grantor or POA may 
provide written notice thereof to Grantee.  Thereafter, if Grantee continues to believe that a 
Material Violation exists and has not been Cured, then Grantee shall provide written notice of 
such belief to the Grantor or POA.  In such notice, Grantee shall specify: (i) a date, place and time 
for an administrative meeting at which the alleged Material Violation, the actions taken by 
Grantee in response thereto and the Grantee’s suggested action to Cure the alleged Material 
Violation will be discussed (the “Administrative Meeting”); and (ii) the names of the Grantee’s 
BCP Program Manager and the Grantee’s Division Director for Natural Resources  and 
Environmental Quality, or their successors (the “Grantee Decision Makers”).  The Administrative 
Meeting shall be held within a reasonable period of time and shall be presided over and run by the 
Grantee Decision Makers.  The Grantor and Grantor’s agents or representatives and a 
representative of the POA shall have the right to attend the Administrative Meeting and to be 
heard at the Administrative Meeting and shall have the right to submit at the Administrative 
Meeting any written reports or other materials to Grantee as they may deem appropriate.  The 
Administrative Meeting will be held in Travis County, Texas at a time and at a location which is 
convenient for the Grantor, POA, and the Grantee, but the Administrative Meeting is not required 
to be a public hearing and Grantee may impose reasonable time constraints and other conditions at 
the Administrative Meeting.  The Grantor, the POA, and the Grantee Decision Makers shall both 
operate in good faith to resolve any disputes or disagreements which may exist at the 
Administrative Meeting.  After the Administrative Meeting, the Grantee Decision Makers will, 
within a reasonable period of time determine and notify Grantor and the POA as to whether they 
believe that the alleged Material Violation continues to exist; whether the Grantee actions taken in 
response to the alleged Material Violation are appropriate and permitted under the terms of this 
Agreement; and whether the alleged Material Violation has been Cured.  If Grantor or POA 
disagrees with the decision of the Grantee Decision Makers, then Grantor or POA may provide 
written request for an appeal to the Commissioners Court of Travis County.  Thereafter, the 
Grantee will, within a reasonable period of time, at a regular or special meeting of the Travis 
County Commissioners Court, consider the alleged Material Violation, the actions taken by 
Grantee in response thereto, and the status of any actions which have been taken to Cure the 
alleged Material Violation.  The meeting by the Travis County Commissioners Court to consider 
such action may be postponed or continued to a future regular or scheduled meeting so long as the 
meeting is held within a reasonable period of time and so long as the Grantee Decision Makers 
deliver to Grantor written notice of such meeting at least seven (7) days in advance of the initial 
meeting (continuations or re-postings of the initial meeting may be held with only five (5) days 
notice) and so long as proper notice of such meeting is provided as required by the Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 551 (The Texas Open Meetings Act).   

 
d) If Grantee exercises its right to close all or any portion of the Approved Trails, then Grantee will 

have the right to place locks on the gates which are located at or in the vicinity of the Approved 
Access Points associated with the portion of the Approved Trails which has been closed (or 
Grantee may lock the gates at all of the Approved Access Points if the Approved Trails has been 
closed in its entirety).  In the event Grantee locks any gates under the provisions hereof,  Grantee 
will, if requested by the Grantor, provide one (1) set of keys to the Grantor (which said keys may 
be duplicated by the Grantor) in order to allow the Grantor, only, to have access to the License 
Area at all times for the purposes allowed hereunder. 

 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



e) Grantee understands and hereby agrees and acknowledges that: (i) Grantee will not abuse the 
discretion granted to Grantee under the provisions of this Paragraph 3; (ii) the initial action taken 
by Grantee under this Paragraph 3 with respect to any alleged Material Violation will be 
specifically measured and calibrated to address the alleged Material Violation and will be limited 
in scope to measures designed to Cure the alleged Material Violation; (iii) if any alleged Material 
Violation occurs on a repeated basis, Grantee may take into account prior responses in 
determining the action it takes as a result of the alleged Material Violation, but in all events, the 
actions taken by Grantee under this Paragraph 3 will be staged in increments of severity so as to 
provide a measured progressive response by Grantee to any alleged recurring Material Violation; 
(iv) Grantee will implement trail usage restrictions or closures only in a manner which is 
reasonably designed to Cure any applicable Material Violations which have not been Cured at the 
time of implementation; (v) if problems are experienced in a particular portion of the Mitigation 
Tract, restrictions and/or closures will be applied only in that portion of Mitigation Tract; and (vi) 
before establishing trail restrictions or closures, Grantee shall make a reasonable effort to seek 
alternative solutions that will not affect trail usage. 

 
f) If Grantee at any time exercises Grantee’s rights under subparagraphs 3(b) or 3(c) above to impose 

restrictions on usage of the Approved Trails in excess of those restrictions set forth in this 
Agreement or if Grantee at any time closes the Approved Trails and/or denies access by any of the 
Approved Participants to the Approved Trails, Grantee shall revoke and discontinue such 
additional inappropriate restrictions and restore and reinstate the full trail usage rights at such time 
as the Material Violation has been Cured. 

 
g) Grantor and Grantee both agree and hereby acknowledge and agree that: (i) curative action on the 

part of Grantor, and/or the POA is optional and not mandatory; (ii) the POA may, by written 
notice delivered to Grantee, relinquish all or any portion of its rights and the rights of the 
Approved Participants under this Agreement, and abandon and cease its usage and maintenance of 
all or any portion of the Approved Trails (such action may be taken by the POA at any time, and 
from time to time, at the sole option and election of the POA), and after such action has been 
taken, the Grantor and POA will have no further maintenance obligations under this Agreement 
with respect to any portion of the Approved Trails or any Approved Access Point which has been 
abandoned by the POA; provided, however, that POA must, as a condition to its abandonment of 
all or any portion of the Approved Trails, deliver written notice of such abandonment to the 
Grantee specifying the portion of the Approved Trails which is being abandoned; and (iii) 
notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, the POA may abandon and cease its usage 
and maintenance of all or any of the Approved Access Points, and thereafter neither the POA nor 
the Grantor will have any further maintenance obligations under this Agreement with respect to 
any of the Approved Access Points which have been so abandoned (provided, however, that as a 
condition to its abandonment of any one or more of the Approved Access Points, the POA must, at 
least thirty (30) days prior to the date of abandonment, deliver to the Grantee and the Grantor a 
written notice identifying the one or more Approved Access Points being abandoned).  After any 
abandonment by the POA of any of the Approved Access Points, Grantee may place locks or 
barricades which restrict vehicular and pedestrian access at any Approved Access Point which has 
been abandoned by the POA. 

 
h) All of the actions and determinations of Grantee under this Paragraph 3 are subject to judicial 

review.  If Grantor believes that Grantee has taken any other action in violation of any provisions 
of this Agreement (whether in this Paragraph 3 or elsewhere), then Grantor may seek and obtain 
judicial relief, with injunctive remedies or other remedies which may be available at law or in 
equity. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is agreed and understood that the Grantee will have no 
liability to the Grantor or Approved Participants due to the loss of rights to use the Approved 
Trails during the period of any closure imposed by Grantee under the terms of this Paragraph 3. 

 
4) Miscellaneous. 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



a) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to be a gift or a dedication of any portion of 
the Approved Trails and the right to use the same to the general public or for any public use or 
purpose whatsoever, it being the intention of the parties hereto and their successors and assigns 
that nothing in this Agreement, expressed or implied, shall confer upon any person, other than 
Grantor and its successors and assigns, Grantee and its successors and assigns, the POA and the 
Approved Participants any rights or remedies under, or by reason of, this Agreement. 

 
b) If any provision of this Agreement shall be or become invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any 

respect under any applicable law, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining 
provisions shall not be affected or impaired thereby. 

 
c) The rights and obligations contained herein shall run with the land and shall bind and inure to the 

benefit of Grantor and Grantee and their respective successors and assigns.  This Agreement may 
not be amended except by written instrument which is executed by Grantee and either Grantor or 
the POA and which is recorded in the Official Public Records of Travis County, Texas. 

 
5) INDEMNITY OBLIGATIONS. GRANTOR SHALL AND HEREBY AGREE TO INDEMNIFY AND 

HOLD GRANTEE AND GRANTEE’S ADMINISTRATORS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
HARMLESS FROM AND AGAINST ALL LIABILITIES, DAMAGES, SUITS, ACTIONS, COSTS 
AND EXPENSES OF WHATSOEVER NATURE (INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES) 
WHETHER ARISING OUT OF INJURY TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY OR OTHERWISE, CAUSED 
BY OR ARISING OUT OF ANY OF GRANTOR’S OPERATIONS OR ACTIVITIES UPON, OR IN 
CONNECTION WITH THE PRESERVE TRACT, INCLUDING ANY HARM WHICH COULD OCCUR 
TO GRANTOR OR ITS INVITEES WHILE ENTERING ONTO THE PRESERVE TRACT WHETHER 
OR NOT PERMISSION WAS GRANTED BY GRANTEE FOR THE ACCESS UNLESS CAUSED BY 
THE NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OF GRANTEE, ITS EMPLOYEES, AGENTS OR 
CONTRACTORS. 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



SCHEDULE “D-3” 
TO WARRANTY DEED 

 
Legal Description of Benefited Tract for Approved Trails License  

 

                                                   [Attach 297.660-acre legal description] 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



 
SCHEDULE “E” 

TO WARRANTY DEED 
 

Terms and Conditions of Open Space and Other Use Restrictions 
 

1). Open Space.  It is expressly understood and agreed by Grantor and Grantee that the Mitigation Tract 
conveyed hereby is intended at all times hereafter to be operated and maintained by Travis County, Texas, its 
successor and assigns, as an endangered species habitat preserve in accordance with (a) the terms, conditions and 
requirements set forth in the Interlocal Cooperation Agreement dated August 3, 1995 between Travis County and the 
City of Austin implementing the Balcones Canyonlands Conservation Plan Shared Vision (the "Regional Plan"), 
with the Regional Plan being outlined and described in the "Habitat Conservation Plan and Environmental Impact 
Statement" dated March, 1996, between the City of Austin and Travis County, and (b) the regional permit issued by 
USFWS under its Permit No. PRT 788841 on May 2, 1996 (the "Regional Permit").  To the extent that all or any 
portion of the Mitigation Tract, for any reason, ceases to be used as an endangered species habitat preserve in 
accordance with the terms, conditions and requirements of the Regional Plan and Regional Permit, then the 
Mitigation Tract shall continue to be held and maintained by Travis County, Texas, its successor and assigns, as 
“open space” subject only to access and use in accordance with the terms of the Approved Trails License described 
in Schedule D-2 to this Special Warranty Deed by the applicable parties described therein.  In no event shall all or 
any portion of the Mitigation Tract be used, developed and/or maintained for any other purpose other than “open 
space,” and with no public access permitted thereto, other than by the applicable parties described in Schedule D-2 
to this Special Warranty Deed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Approved Trails License.  The 
foregoing use restriction is intended to (a) be binding upon the Mitigation Tract conveyed hereby, as well as Travis 
County as its owner, and any subsequent owner of all or any portion of the Mitigation Tract, and constitutes a 
covenant (coupled with an interest) running with the title to the Mitigation Tract hereby conveyed, and (b) inure to 
the benefit of each of Grantor, the owners of any of the Retained Tract, the POA (as defined in Schedule D-2 to this 
Special Warranty Deed), the Volente Municipal Utility District, and their respective successors and assigns, and 
constitutes a covenant and appurtenant right (coupled with an interest) running with the title to the Retained Tract.  
 
2). Vegetation Clearing.  Vegetation clearing activities in, or within 300 feet of, occupied habitat will be 
conducted outside the breeding season of the golden-cheeked warbler or black-capped vireo occupying the habitat, 
unless breeding season surveys performed by a Service-permitted biologist indicate that no golden-cheeked warblers 
or black-capped vireos are present within 300 feet of the desired activity, or as otherwise approved on a case-by-case 
basis by the Service. The breeding season for the golden-cheeked warbler is March 1 to August 1. The breeding 
season for black-capped vireo is March 15 to September 1. Building, utility infrastructure, and street construction 
may be conducted year round as long as the construction activities promptly follow the clearing activities and/or 
were initiated before March 1, therefore being continuous activity from before the start of the breeding season.  For 
the purposes of this provision, the black-capped vireo breeding season is defined as March 15 through September 1, 
and the golden-cheeked warbler breeding season is from March 1 through August 1. 
 
3). Revegetation.  Clearing for construction of building, streets, and other areas of impervious cover will be 
minimized to the maximum extent practicable.  Consideration will be given to allowing no more than a width of 25 
feet to remain unplanted with appropriate woody vegetation on utility easements, to allow future access by 
maintenance vehicles.  Areas disturbed during construction but not occupied by buildings or impervious surfaces be 
replanted with native vegetation species, to provide additional benefit to the black-capped vireo and golden-cheeked 
warbler. 
 
4). Deer and Bird Seed Feeders.  Grantor is prohibited from providing any supplemental feed for deer or bird 
seed feeders (other types of feeders such as hummingbird feeders or suet feeders are not prohibited). 
 
5). Pesticides.  Grantor is prohibited from using organochlorine and organophosphate pesticides, or the use of 
any other types of pesticides in a manner that is not in accordance with the manufacturer's directions. 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



                                                                               SCHEDULE “F” 
TO WARRANTY DEED 

 
Plat and Other Instrument Joinder Obligations of Travis County  

 
 
Reference is hereby made to that certain that certain Ordinance adopted by the Village of Volente, Texas (the 
“Village”) effective as of October 23, 2007, evidencing the conditional preliminary plan (the “Preliminary Plan”) 
approval by the Village for the 297.660-acre tract described in Schedule D-3 to this Warranty Deed (the 
“Preliminary Plan Tract”).  Buyer acknowledges that those portions of the Mitigation Tract conveyed hereby that are 
described in Schedules A-2, A-3 and A-4 to this Warranty Deed (collectively the “Platted Tracts”) are included 
within such 297.660-acre Preliminary Plan Tract.   As a result, by its acceptance of this Warranty Deed, Buyer 
agrees that within thirty (30) days after receipt by Buyer of any written notice from Seller requesting that Buyer 
either execute and deliver a final subdivision plat of any portion of the Preliminary Plan Tract or any other 
development-related instrument that contains or effects all or any portion of the Platted Tracts conveyed hereby to 
Buyer and such plat or such other development-related instrument, as applicable, is otherwise in substantial 
compliance with the development of all or any portion of the Preliminary Plan Tract as contemplated in the 
Preliminary Plan, as the same may now or hereafter be amended with the approval of the Village, Buyer will (i) 
execute and deliver such final subdivision plat to the Village and any other applicable governmental authority for 
purposes of including and subjecting the applicable portion of the Platted Tracts to the terms and coverage of such 
final plat and (ii) execute and deliver any such other development-related instruments to the applicable party entitled 
thereto, so long as (a) such final plat or other development-related instrument, as applicable, does not impose any 
conditions on such Platted Tracts that are inconsistent with the Regional Plan (as defined in Schedule E to this 
Warranty Deed) and (b) Buyer is not required to post all or any portion of any related fiscal surety deposit required 
to be posted by the Village or any other applicable governmental authority in connection with the filing of such final 
plat or other development-related instrument, as applicable.  The final subdivision plat and each such other 
development-related instrument, as applicable, will have been prepared by Seller, at the sole cost of Seller.  Buyer’s 
only obligations regarding the final subdivision plat and any such other development-related instruments will be to 
promptly execute the same, in the appropriate places, and deliver the final plat document to the Village or executed 
originals of any such other development-related instruments to the appropriate party entitled thereto.  Seller HOLDS 
BUYER HARMLESS AND WILL INDEMNIFY BUYER of and from any obligation, cost, or expense related to 
the final subdivision plat and all such other development-related instruments, other than Buyer’s obligations to 
promptly execute and deliver the final subdivision plat to the Village and such other development-related 
instruments to the appropriate party entitled thereto. 
 
  
 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



SCHEDULE “G” 
TO WARRANTY DEED 

 
Regional Waterline Easement Legal Description 

 
[Attach 1.008-acre tract legal description]  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “D” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 REGIONAL WATERLINE EASEMENT LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 
[Attach 1.008-acre legal description]  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “E” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 DRIP IRRIGATION FIELD EASEMENT  

 
[Attach Form of Drip Irrigation Field Easement w/82.939-acre legal description, but confirm final easement 

will not exceed 55 acres]  
 

 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “F” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 DRIP IRRIGATION FIELD WASTEWATER LINE/ACCESS EASEMENT  

 
[Attach Form of Drip Irrigation Field Wastewater Line/Access Easement w/0.598-acre legal description]  

 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “G” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT WATER QUALITY BUFFER EASEMENT  

 
[Attach Form of Wastewater Treatment Plant Water Quality Buffer Easement w/0.831-acre legal description]  

 
 
 

 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “H” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 WATER STORAGE FACILITY WATER QUALITY BUFFER EASEMENT  

 
[Attach Form of Water Storage Facility Water Quality Buffer Easement w/0.321-acre legal description]  

 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “I” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 STORMWATER POND DRAINAGE EASEMENT  

 
[Attach Form of Stormwater Pond Drainage Easement w/20.195-acre legal description] 

 
 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “J” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 STORMWATER POND ACCESS EASEMENT  

 
[Attach Form of Stormwater Pond Access Easement w/1.286-acre legal description] 

 
 
 

 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “K” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 WATERLINE AND OTHER UTILITY EASEMENT  

 
[Attach Form of Waterline and Other Utility Easement w/1.224-acre legal description] 

 
 

 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “L” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
 ELECTRIC UTILITY EASEMENT  

 
[Attach Form of Electric Utility Easement w/1.33-acre legal description] 

 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



{002.00050687.1} 
 AUS:0053217/00001:381040v7 

51

EXHIBIT “M” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
FENCING REQUIREMENTS  

 
1. Seller shall install and maintain fencing or shall contract with Buyer to install and maintain fencing on the 

boundary of the mitigation tract in the locations shown on Exhibit M-1 (the “Fencing Map”) attached 
hereto.  This Mitigation Tract fencing shall provide a barrier to pedestrian and vehicular ingress and egress 
around the entire perimeter of the mitigation tract with no gaps at any time.  During the construction phase, 
if any area is unfenced that would allow uncontrolled access to the mitigation tract, temporary metal 
fencing shall be installed to close any gaps and prevent uncontrolled access until such time as permanent 
boundary or Back-of-Lot fencing is installed.  

 
2. Seller, at Seller’s option and expense, shall install fencing along the rear lot lines of all residential lots (the 

“Back-of-lot Fencing”) which are adjacent to the mitigation tract.  Prior to the issuance of a certificate of 
occupancy on the first house within a development phase, the Back-of-Lot fencing along the entire 
boundary of that development phase shall be completed. The individual lot owners would be required by a 
Restrictive Covenant on the lots to maintain such fences in good repair and to replace the fencing from time 
to time, as necessary.  No gates will be allowed within the Back-of-Lot Fencing.  Back-of-Lot Fencing may 
be any type of fence so long as the fencing creates a barrier to pedestrian ingress and egress which is as 
effective as five foot (5') fencing constructed with metal pickets or a combination of masonry pillars and 
metal pickets.  These Back-of-Lot Fences will be constructed prior to clearing or development of each 
development phase and will be constructed at the undisturbed ground level. Any retaining walls constructed 
on the rear of the residential lots will be constructed and maintained from the residential lots and will not 
require any disturbance to the Mitigation Tract.  

 
3. Seller shall install or shall contract with Buyer to install and maintain 6 foot (6’) chain link fencing within 

the Mitigation Tract on the boundary line with the Volente Community Park tract that creates a barrier from 
the park tract to the mitigation tract.  No gates will be allowed within this fencing.  The Volente 
Community Park will be required to maintain such fence in good repair and to replace the fencing from 
time to time, as necessary.   

 
4 Along all other boundaries of the mitigation tract, Seller, at Seller’s option and expense, shall construct and 

maintain fencing or shall contract with Buyer to construct and maintain fencing which creates a barrier to 
entry at least as effective as galvanized woven wire fencing to a minimum height of three feet three inches 
(3' 3"), plus two (2) strands of barbed wire, raising the total height of fencing to a minimum of 
approximately four feet 2 inches (4' 2").  The foregoing standard of required fencing is sometimes referred 
to herein as "Standard Preserve Fencing.”  Seller will complete installation of Standard Preserve Fencing 
within 90 days months of completion of this agreement or make a payment to Buyer to cover these fencing 
construction costs at the signing of this agreement.  A map showing the linear distances along the boundary 
where "Standard Preserve Fencing” shall be constructed will be provided to Buyer.  

 
5 Seller, at Seller’s option and expense shall install and maintain gates or shall contract with Buyer to install 

such gates as may be required to reasonably control access to the Mitigation Tract for use of the Approved 
Trails and easement roads and to provide for the Reserved Rights.  Gates shall be installed and maintained 
that control access on the Approved Trails and allow for the reserved rights but shall otherwise remain 
locked.  

 
6 The Buyer, at Buyer's option and expense, may install fencing in addition to the fencing required for the 

Back-of-Lot Fencing or the other fencing required to be constructed by Seller under the terms of this 
Contract. Buyer may install and maintain fencing on the boundary of the Land, and may include standard 
barbed wire fencing or a combination of woven metal fencing and barbed wire or deer fencing up to eight 
feet (8') in height; provided that Buyer shall install such gates as may be required to provide access allowed 
in the Reserved Rights.  

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



EXHIBIT “M-1” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

FENCING MAP 
 

{002.00050687.1} 
 AUS:0053217/00001:381040v7 

1

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



{002.00043496.2}  
 AUS:0053217/00001:381040v7 

2

 
EXHIBIT “N” 

TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 
 

O&M COSTS 
 
1. Estimated Mitigation Tract Operation and Management Costs.  Buyer has estimated costs to conduct 

operation and management for the Mitigation Tract as follows: 
 

a. Estimated Costs Without Limited Access to Approved Trails.  If the Mitigation Tract is conveyed 
to Buyer in accordance with this Contract and Seller elects to prohibit access to Approved Trails 
of the Mitigation Tract by residents of the Retained Tract and their accompanied invitees and 
guests, the first year of operation and management costs for the Mitigation Tract are estimated as 
follows: 

 
1. A one time fee in the amount of $22,130.00 for equipment necessary to maintain the 

Mitigation Tract (the “One Time O&M Fee Without Resident Access”), and  
 

2. An  initial annual payment in the amount of $47,632.00 for maintenance and operation of 
the Mitigation Tract (the “O&M Fee Without Resident Access”; the O&M Fee Without 
Resident Access and the One Time O&M Fee Without Resident Access collectively 
referred to herein as the “Basic Land Management Costs Without Resident Access”). 

 
b. Estimated Costs With Limited Access to Approved Trails.  If the Mitigation Tract is conveyed to 

Buyer in accordance with this Contract and Seller elects to allow access to Approved Trails by 
residents of the Retained Tract and their accompanied invitees and guests as provided in Schedule 
D-2 to the form of Special Warranty Deed attached hereto as Exhibit “C”, the first year of 
operation and management costs for the Mitigation Tract are estimated to include the Basic Land 
Management Costs Without Resident Access, plus the following: 

 
1. A one time fee in the amount of $28,650.00 for equipment necessary to maintain the 

Mitigation Tract directly related to resident access (the “One Time O&M Fee With 
Resident Access”). 

 
2. An initial annual payment in the amount of $52,140.00 for maintenance and operation of 

the Mitigation Tract directly related to resident access (the “O&M Fee With Resident 
Access”; the O&M Fee with Resident Access and the One Time O&M Fee With Resident 
Access collectively referred to herein as the “Basic Land Management Costs With 
Resident Access”).  The Basic Land Management Costs Without Resident Access and the 
Basic Land Management Costs With Resident Access collectively comprise the O&M 
Costs as referenced in Section V of this Contract. 

 
c. Other.   Seller shall pay Buyer the (i) Basic Land Management Costs Without Resident Access in 

accordance with Section 2(a) of this Exhibit N, and (ii) Basic Land Management Costs With 
Resident Access in accordance with Section 2(b)-(c) of this Exhibit N.   

 
 2. Payment of O&M Costs.  Seller agrees to pay Buyer the O&M Costs as follows: 
 

a. Payment of Certain Costs Regardless Whether Limited Access to Approved Trails.  Regardless of 
whether Seller elects to allow access to Approved Trails of the Mitigation Tract by residents of the 
Retained Tract and their accompanied invitees and guests as provided in Schedule D-2 to the form 
of Special Warranty Deed attached hereto as Exhibit “C”, Seller agrees to pay Buyer the 
following amounts within sixty (60) days after the Closing Date: 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



{002.00043496.2}  
 AUS:0053217/00001:381040v7 

3

 
1. The One Time O&M Fee Without Resident Access, plus an additional $146,624.15 to 

cover the needed fencing costs, and   
 

2. The O&M Fee Without Resident Access.  Subsequent annual payments of the O&M Fee 
Without Resident Access shall be made to Buyer in accordance with Section 3(a) of this 
Exhibit N. 

 
b. Allowing/Opening and Prohibiting/Closing Limited Access to Approved Trails; Payment 

Obligation.  Seller, at Seller’s sole discretion, shall have the option to elect to allow access to 
Approved Trails by residents of the Retained Tract and their accompanied invitees and guests as 
provided in Schedule D-2 to the form of Special Warranty Deed attached hereto as “Exhibit “C”.  
Seller shall notify Buyer of any such election of Seller’s option to allow limited access by written 
notice to Buyer along with payment of the Basic Land Management Costs With Resident Access.  
Limited access may proceed no earlier than six (6) months following written notice and payment 
from Seller to Buyer under this Section 2(b).  Seller, or the property owner’s association (“POA”) 
established in connection with the development of all or a majority of the Retained Tract, shall 
have the option to elect to prohibit access to and close the Approved Trails upon written notice to 
Buyer; provided, the POA must obtain written consent from Seller to any exercise by the POA of 
it’s election to prohibit access to and close the Approved Trails.  Upon providing notice to Buyer 
of election to prohibit access to and close the Approved Trails, the annual O&M Fee With 
Resident Access due during the year such notice is provided shall be prorated to the date notice is 
received by Buyer, and any further obligation to pay the annual O&M Fee With Resident Access 
shall cease thereafter. 

 
c. Payment of Costs With Limited Access to Approved Trails.  If Seller elects to allow access to 

Approved Trails of the Mitigation Tract by residents and accompanied invitees and guests of the 
Retained Tract pursuant to Section 2(b) of this Exhibit N, Seller agrees to pay Buyer the following 
amounts: 

 
1. The One Time O&M Fee With Resident Access, and 
  
2. The Annual O&M Fee With Resident Access.  Subsequent annual payments of the 

Annual O&M Fee With Resident Access, if any, shall be made to Buyer in accordance 
with Section 3(b) of this Exhibit N. 

 
3. Seller and Buyer agree that Seller’s written notice and payment to Buyer pursuant to 

Section 2(b) of this Exhibit N shall be a condition precedent to any payment of Seller to 
Buyer under Section 2(c) of this Exhibit N.  

 
3. Annual Payment and CPI Escalator of Certain Annual O&M Fees.   
 

a. Annual Payment and CPI Escalator of Annual O&M Fee Without Limited Access to Approved 
Trails.  Seller shall pay the annual O&M Fee Without Resident Access each subsequent year 
within thirty (30) days after the anniversary of the Closing Date until such time as the “Total 
Improvement Value” of the development on the Retained Tract has reached $18 million.  The 
“Total Improvement Value” is designated annually by Travis Central Appraisal District for the 
improvements constructed on the Retained Tract. The annual O&M Fee Without Resident Access 
may increase each year as necessary to reflect increases in the “Consumer Price Index.”  The 
annual O&M Fee Without Resident Access shall be adjusted each year to equal the product 
obtained by multiplying $47,632.00 by a fraction, the numerator of which is the “Consumer Price 
Index - Seasonally Adjusted U.S. City Average For All Items For All Urban Consumers (1982-84 
= 100),” published monthly in the “Monthly Labor Review” of the Bureau of Labor Statistics of 
the United States Department of Labor (“CPI-U”), for the applicable year for which the O&M Fee 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



{002.00043496.2}  
 AUS:0053217/00001:381040v7 

4

is being calculated (“New CPI-U”), and the denominator of which is the CPI-U for [December] 
2008 (“Base CPI-U”). If the CPI-U is discontinued, the “Consumer Price Index - Seasonally 
Adjusted U.S. City Average For All Items For Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (1982-
84=100),” published monthly in the “Monthly Labor Review” by the Bureau of Labor Statistics of 
the United States Department of Labor (“CPI-W”), shall be used for computing the annual 
adjustment of the annual O&M Fee Without Resident Access.  If the base year “(1982-84=100)” 
or other base year used in computing the CPI-U (or CPI-W, if applicable) is changed, the figures 
used in making the adjustment shall be changed accordingly, so that all increases in the CPI-U (or 
CPI-W, if applicable) are taken into account notwithstanding any such change in the base year. 

 
b. Annual Payment and CPI Escalator of Annual O&M Fee With Limited Access to Approved 

Trails, If Applicable.   Payment by Seller to Buyer of the annual O&M Fee With Resident Access, 
if and when payable by Seller to Buyer as provided in Section 2(b)-(c) of this Exhibit N, shall be 
increased to reflect increases in the Consumer Price Index using the methodology provided for 
under Section 3(a) of this Exhibit N; provided, the multiplier used shall be $52,140.00, rather than 
$47,632.00, and said O&M Fee With Resident Access, as so increased, shall be due and payable in 
perpetuity and shall not discontinue after such time as the “Total Improvement Value” of the 
development on the Retained Tract has reached $18 million, except as otherwise agreed upon in 
writing by Buyer and Seller.   

  
c. Other.  Buyer will notify Seller of the annual O&M Fee Without Resident Access and, if 

applicable, the annual O&M Fee With Resident Access, for each subsequent year within ninety 
(90) days prior to the date such fee is due or upon the availability of the current new CPI –U data, 
whichever is the later date and shall include Buyer’s calculations for determining the adjustment to 
the O&M Fee Without Resident Access and, if applicable, the annual O&M Fee With Resident 
Access. 

 
4. Should Seller fail to forward an annual payment of the annual O&M Fee Without Resident Access or, if 

applicable, the annual O&M Fee With Resident Access, Buyer reserves the right to close trails and prohibit 
the use of such trails and roads through the License Area, as well as other remedies available to Buyer, 
including remedies outlined in Exhibit D-2 of the Warranty Deed; provided, Buyer shall restore and 
reinstate the full trail usage rights at such time as any such delinquent annual O&M Fee Without Resident 
Access and, as applicable, any annual O&M Fee With Resident Access payments are made by Seller to 
Buyer. 

 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



{002.00043496.2}  
 AUS:0053217/00001:381040v7 

5

                                                                              EXHIBIT “O” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
CELL TOWER LEASE ASSIGNMENT  

 
[Attach Form of Cell Tower Lease Assignment] 

 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



 
 AUS:0053217/00001:381198v4 

1

UEXHIBIT “G” 
TO PURCHASE CONTRACT 

 
UWATER QUALITY BUFFER EASEMENT 

(Wastewater Treatment Facility) 
 
 This WATER QUALITY BUFFER EASEMENT (this “ UAgreement U”) is made effective 
the _____ day of ___________________, 2008, by and between TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, a 
political subdivision of the State of Texas (“UGrantorU”), and VOLENTE MUNICIPAL UTILITY 
DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Texas organized pursuant to Article 16, 
Section 59, of the Texas Constitution (“UGranteeU”).  
 
1BURecitalsU: 
 

1. Grantor owns and holds fee simple title to that certain tract of real property situated 
in Travis County, Texas, more particularly described on UExhibit A U, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference (the “ UEasement AreaU”). 
 

2.  In accordance with the terms of this Agreement, Grantor has agreed to grant to 
Grantee a non-exclusive, perpetual water quality buffer zone easement upon, over and across the 
Easement Area for purposes of providing a water quality buffer zone adjacent to the wastewater 
treatment plant and related facilities of Grantee to be located upon land adjacent and contiguous 
to the Easement Area. 
 
UAgreementsU: 
 

Now therefore, for and in consideration of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties 
covenant and agree for themselves, and their respective successors and assigns, as follows: 

1. UEasement U.  Grantor hereby grants to Grantee a non-exclusive, perpetual water 
quality buffer zone easement upon, over and across the Easement Area (the “UEasement U”) for 
purposes of providing a water quality buffer zone adjacent to the wastewater treatment plant and 
related facilities of Grantee to be located upon land adjacent and contiguous to the Easement 
Area (collectively the “Wastewater Treatment Plant”), and in order to maintain such water 
quality buffer zone, no clearing of natural vegetation from and/or disturbance of the ground 
surface of any of the Easement Area shall be permitted by Grantor, Grantee or any other party.  
Grantor hereby binds itself and its successors and assigns, to warrant and forever defend title to 
the Easement Area unto Grantee, its successors and assigns, against all persons whomsoever 
lawfully claiming or to claim the same or any part thereof, by, through or under Grantor, but not 
otherwise; subject, however, to the terms and provisions hereof. 

2. UNoise ProtectionU.   Grantee acknowledges that it shall be required to provide noise 
protection at the Wastewater Treatment Plant at all times, which protection will include devices 
which reduce the noise attributable to the applicable operations at the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant, and in addition to ambient noise, to no more than 32 db at 50 feet from the blowers and 28 
db at 100 feet from the blowers.   

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



 
 AUS:0053217/00001:381198v4 

2

3. USubordination to PermitU.  Grantee acknowledges that the Easement Area is 
covered by a certain federal Endangered Species Act Section 10(a) Permit Number TE-806831, 
dated October 7, 1996, and subsequently amended (the “ UPermitU”), and that pursuant to the 
Permit, the Easement Area and certain portions of the surrounding property have been dedicated 
in perpetuity as a preserve for the benefit of the endangered golden-cheeked warbler. This 
Easement is in all respects granted to be subject and inferior to the Permit and related documents, 
instruments, and agreements and any future amendments thereof.  The joinder of Grantee shall 
not be required in connection with any future amendments of the Permit or any such related 
documents, instruments, or agreements.  Grantee covenants and agrees that any activities within 
the Easement Area will be in accordance with the Permit and any and all other applicable legal 
requirements.   

4. UNo Public GrantU.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to be a 
gift or a dedication of any portion of the Easement Area to the general public or for any public 
use or purpose whatsoever, it being the intention of the parties hereto and their successors and 
assigns that nothing in this Agreement, expressed or implied, shall confer upon any person, other 
than the parties hereto and their successors and assigns, any rights or remedies under, or by 
reason of, this Agreement.   
 

5. UHeadingsU.  The headings of the paragraphs contained herein are intended for 
reference purposes only and shall not be used to define, limit, describe or interpret the 
agreements contained herein or the rights granted hereby nor in any way affect the terms and 
provisions hereof. 
 

6. UAttorneys’ FeesU.  In the event any party should bring suit against the other party in 
respect of any matters provided for herein, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from 
the other party reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of court in connection with such suit. 
 

7. UPartial InvalidityU.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be or become 
invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under any applicable law, the validity, legality 
and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be affected or impaired thereby. 
 

8. URuns With Land/Successors; AmendmentsU.  The rights and obligations contained 
herein shall run with the land and shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and 
their respective contractors, agents, representatives, successors and assigns.  This Agreement 
may not be amended except by written instrument executed by Grantee and Travis County, 
Texas (such approval by Travis County to not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed) 
and recorded in the Official Public Records of Travis County, Texas.. 
 

9. Counterparts.  This document may be executed in one or more counterparts, all 
parties need not be signatories to the same documents, and all counterpart-signed documents 
shall be deemed to be an original and one instrument. 
 

10. Governing Law.  This document shall be governed by and interpreted under the 
laws of the State of Texas. 
 

                                  [Remainder of page left intentionally blank]

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



 
 AUS:0053217/00001:381198v4 

3

              IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Easement effective as 
of the day and year first above written. 
 
      GRANTOR: 
 

GRASON VOLENTE INVESTMENTS, LTD., 
a Texas limited partnership 

 
By: Grason Communities I LLC, 

       a Texas limited liability company 
       Its General Partner 
 
       By:  ___________________________  
       Name:  ________________________ 
       Title:  _________________________ 

 
 
GRANTEE: 
     

 VOLENTE MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT,  
a political subdivision of the State of Texas 
organized pursuant to Article 16, Section 59, of the 
Texas Constitution 
 
By: _______________________________ 
Name: _______________________________ 
Title: _______________________________ 

      
      
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

§ 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the _____ day of 
________________, 2008, by _____________________, ____________________ of Grason 
Communities I LLC, a Texas limited liability company, on behalf of said corporation acting as 
General Partner on behalf of Grason Volente Investments, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership. 
 

        
Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



 
 AUS:0053217/00001:381198v4 

4

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
 

 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the _____ day of 

__________________, 2008, by _____________________, ____________________ of Volente 
Municipal Utility District, a political subdivision of the State of Texas organized pursuant to 
Article 16, Section 59, of the Texas Constitution. 

 
 
 

        
Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

 
 
Exhibit A – Easement Area  
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



 
 AUS:0053217/00001:381198v4 

5

0BEXHIBIT A 
TO WATER QUALITY BUFFER EASEMENT 

 
 

[Attach legal description for 0.831-acre tract] 
 

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request

Voting Session 12/16/08 Work Session ____________

(Date) (Date)

A. Request made by: _________________________________Phone # 854-9383 ~
Joseph P. Gieselman, Exec. r. —

Signature of Elected Official/Appointed OfficiallExecutiv anager ounty Attorney C)
—

N)
B. Requested Text: Receive briefing and take approp e action on the Federal

Economic Stimulus Package including project list submitted by~e ~
Texas Department of Transportation.

—

C. Approved by:
Samuel T. Biscoe, County Judge

A. Backup memorandum and exhibits should be attached and submitted with this
Agenda Request (Original and eight (8) copies of agenda request and backup).

B. Please list all of the agencies or officials names and telephone numbers that might
be affected or be involved with the request. Send a copy of this Agenda Request
and backup to them:

Bob Daigh, PE, District Engineer, TXDOT Austin District, 832-7000
Joe Cantalupo, Executive Director, CAMPO, 974-6441
Ed Collins, TXDOT, Austin District, 832-7041
Alicia Perez, Executive Manager, Administrative Services, 854-9343
Deece Eckstein, Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator, 854-9343
Carol Joseph, TNR, 854-9383
Steve Manilla, PE, TNR, 854-9383
LeRoy Click, TNR, 854-9383
Charlie Watts, TNR, 854-9383

III. Required Authorizations: Please check if applicable:
Planning and Budget Office (854-9106)

— Additional funding for any department or for any purpose

_____ Transfer of existing funds within or between any line item budget

Grant
Human Resources Department (854-9165)

_____ A change in your department personnel (reclassifications, etc.)

Purchasing Office (854-9700)

_____ Bid, Purchase Contract, Request for Proposal, Procurement

County Attorney Office (854-9415)

_____ Contract, Agreement, Policy & Procedure

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES

JOSEPH P. GIESELMAN, EXECUTIVE MANAGER

411 West 13th Street
Executive Office Building
P0 Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767
(512) 854-9383

~~
12Ii~I08

Date: December 11, 2008

MEMORANDUM

To: Members of the Commissioners’ Court

From: Joseph P. Gieselman, Executive Manager

Subject: Briefing on Federal Economic Stimulus ack ge

Proposed Motion: Receive briefing and take appropriate action on the Federal Economic
Stimulus Package including project list submitted by the Texas
Department of Transportation.

Summary and Staff Recommendation:
Since the November 2008 election, there has been considerable discussion of an economic
stimulus package to be considered by Congress in early 2009. This discussion has led to
numerous requests by interest groups, associations and agencies to compile lists of infrastructure
projects that could be considered as a part of a future stimulus package to help create jobs and
stimulate business. Currently, Transportation and Natural Resources (TNR) staff is seeking
approval from Commissioners Court to provide project lists to the Texas Department of
Transportation (TXD0T) that meet TXDoT’s eligibility criteria.

In early November 2008, the TXDoT Austin District received a request from its Administrative
Office to provide a list of projects that would be eligible for a proposed forthcoming Economic
Stimulus Package to be considered by Congress. Criteria was developed by TXDoT
Administration and provided to the Austin District to qualify projects and includes the following:

1) Project design will be completed by June 1, 2009 or sooner,
2) Project is or will be in an approved Statewide Transportation Improvement Plan

(STIP) by April 1, 2009 or sooner,
3) Environmental clearance and all required permits will be received by June 1, 2009 or

sooner,
4) 100% right-of-entry or 75% of right-of-way acquired by contract execution, and
5) Utilities sufficiently cleared.

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



TXDoT’ s Austin District responded to the Administration’s request with a proposed project list.
The Administration provided a combined list of all TXDoT district projects on November 19,
2008 to Senator John Cornyn’s Office. The list includes a non-prioritized proposed project list
for Travis, Williamson and Hays Counties. The Capital Area Rural Transportation Planning
Organization (CARTPO) is currently working on compiling a prioritized list for the rural
Counties in TXDoT’s Austin District.

The current TXDoT submittal for Travis County includes 24 projects that total $560.6 million.
Of these projects, one added capacity project, US 290 East (East of US 183 to East of SH 130)
was submitted that totaled $504.0 million and accounted for 90% of the total. The additional
10% of the submittal’s total is comprised of 23 projects that mainly concern safety/operational
maintenance and trail projects. See Attachment 1 for “Prioritized Projects for TXDoT’ s Austin
District Submittal for Travis County.”

After reviewing the project list, TNR staff identified additional projects that may meet the
Economic Stimulus Package project criteria for road projects on the State’s system and County
bridges that are eligible for the State’s “off-system” funding. TNR staff contacted TXDoT staff
and currently those projects are under review to see if they qualify for submittal. See Attachment
2 for a list of prioritized projects requested for addition to TXDoT’ s Travis County Submittal.
Finally, Travis County staff has included a prioritized locally funded project list to be submitted
to TXDoT to be added to the submittal package. See Attachment 3 for “Travis County Locally
Funded Project Readiness.” This list includes a prioritized Travis County locally funded project
list and a list of locally funded projects that don’t meet the letting criteria but can be started
within 2 years. All three project lists were prioritized by TNR staff at the request of CAMPO
staff. Since that request, Senator Watson has requested that the TXDoT list for Travis
Williamson and Hays Counties along with other additional project lists be forwarded to CAMPO
for prioritization through the “Decision Tree” process. It is anticipated that the CAMPO
Transportation Policy Board will have an agenda item to approve an Economic Stimulus Projects
List at its January 2009 meeting which has been moved from January 12th to January 27th1 at
6:00PM.

TNR recommends that the Commissioners Court approve Attachments 1, 2 and 3 and submit the
list to the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) to be included in
CAMPO’ s prioritization process.

Budgetary and Fiscal Impact:
Through this process, there is a potential to fund projects that might otherwise have been delayed
or postponed. All projects included must be “ready to go” to qualify for funding so the cost
benefit is high as well as the ability to provide for a source of new jobs and construction
employment.

Also, any additional funding received by the region will allow TXDoT to reprogram other
projects and possibly move those projects forward in their work program depending on the
funding amount received by the region.

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Issues and Opportunities:
Currently, Transportation and Natural Resources staff are aware of four requests to
submit projects:

- US Conference of Mayors: Main Street Stimulus package Survey (report completed),
Project criteria allows for proj ccts that could bc started and completed in 2 calendar
years. The City of Austin provided an extensive list of public improvement projects.

- American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials “Ready To Go”
Transportation Project Survey (report completed); project criteria allows for projects
that would be under contract in 180 days.

- National Association of Counties “Ready to Go” Infrastructure Projects survey
(survey due December 12); no specific criteria except project needs to be “ready to
go”.

- Texas Department of Transportation Economic Stimulus Package submittal (projects
submitted to John Comyn’s office on November 19th); project criteria requires that
the project be let by August 2009. Travis County TNR staff is requesting approval of
the Commissioners Court to provide additional projects to this submittal.

• Proposed Economic Stimulus Package funding amount is yet to be determined or
approved by Congress.

• Numerous requests are being made to agencies to provide project information to
Congress.

• Criteria for project readiness varies.
• No agency tasked with compiling or prioritizing requests.
• Variety of project submittal requests (water, wastewater infrastructure, transit, road

maintenance, park improvements, etc.) will make prioritization difficult.
• Undetermined size of package makes prioritization of projects difficult.
• Travis County Project list includes one added capacity project that makes up 90% of the

proposed total ($504.0 million of the $560.6 million project list total).
• 10% of the submittal total is safety, maintenance, operational and trail improvement

projects.
• Possibility that a single added capacity project for US 290E will not be funded due to the

$504.0 million amount requested, therefore leaving Travis County with only a small
number of maintenance and operational projects eligible for funding.

• TXDoT District Engineer has stated “given the desperate need for maintenance funds,
most, if not all, of the [stimulus] funds will go to maintenance.”

• Future stimulus package goal of seeking creation of long term jobs may not look
favorably on maintenance type projects.

• Comparisons to Williamson County’s list show fewer safety/maintenance/operational
projects for Travis County’s ready for letting list.

• Additionally, Williamson County has more added capacity projects that meet the
eligibility criteria. TXDoT explained that many of these were Pass-Through Financing
projects that already had design, environmental clearance, and right-of-way completed.

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



• Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority (CapMetro) and Capital Area Regional
Transportation System (CARTS) have submitted project lists to be added to TXDoT’s
submittal.

• Travis County is requesting a list of projects to be added to the list (See Attachments 2
and 3).

• County staff prioritized TXDoT’ s submittal list (Attachment 1) using safety and
operational improvements as the first priority, maintenance projects as second priority,
added capacity projects as third priority and other projects as fourth priority. Additional
County projects lists (Attachments 2 and 3) were prioritized using the same priority
criteria. Projects within the same priority are listed in order of importance.

Background:
In early November 2008, the TXDoT Austin District received a request from TXDOT
Administration to provide a list of projects that would be eligible for a proposed forthcoming
Economic Stimulus Package to be considered by Congress. TXDoT’s Administration provided a
list to Senator John Cornyn’s Office on November 19, 2008 that includes a non-prioritized
proposed project list for Travis, Williamson and Hays Counties. CARTPO is currently working
on compiling a prioritized list for the rural Counties in TXDoT’s Austin District.

In comparing project lists from other counties in the CAMPO region, the Williamson County
submittal includes 33 projects that total $28 8.18 million. Of the total, nine are added capacity
projects that total $133.61 million and make up 46% of the Williamson County submittal. The
remaining 44% are comprised of 14 safety/operational maintenance and trail projects that total
$154.57 million.

Hays County submittal totals $34.38 million and includes 2 added capacity projects totaling
$20.38 million or 59% of the total submittal. The remaining 41% includes four
safety/maintenance projects that total $14.0 million.

At the request of the Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO), Travis County
has prioritized TXDoT’s submittal and other projects the County will be requesting to add to the
submittal. Since that request, Senator Watson has requested that the TXDoT list for Travis
Williamson and Hays Counties along with other additional project lists be forwarded to CAMPO
for prioritization through the “Decision Tree” process. It is anticipated that the CAMPO
Transportation Policy Board will have an agenda item to approve an Economic Stimulus Projects
List at its January 2009 meeting. See Attachment 1 for Prioritized Projects for TXDoT’s Austin
District Submittal for Travis County.

Required Authorizations: none

Exhibits:
Attachment 1- Prioritized Projects for TXDoT’s Austin District Submittal for Travis County
Attachment 2- Prioritized Projects Requested for Addition to TXDoT’s Travis County Submittal
Attachment 3- Travis County Locally Funded Project Readiness

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



JPG:lc:cw
9140 CAMPO

xc: Joe Cantalupo, Executive Director, CAMPO
Bob Daigh, P.E., District Engineer, TXDOT Austin District
Alicia Perez, Administrative Operations
Deece Eckstein, Administrative Operations
Carol Joseph, TNR
Steve Manilla, PE, TNR
LeRoy Click, TNR
Charlie Watts, TNR

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Attachment 1

Prioritized Projects for TXDoT’s Austin District Submittal for Travis County

Priority Type Project Limits Improvement Total
I Bridge SH 71 W At Barton Creek Rehab Bridge and approaches 1,800,000
I Bridge Crumley Ranch Rd. At Rocky Creek Replace Bridge and approaches 450,000
1 Bridge Old San Antonio Rd. At Onion Creek Replace Bridge and approaches 250,000
1 Safety/Op US 290 US 183 to FM 973 Cable barrier 1,000,000
1 Safety/Op FM 3177 Daffan/Canoga and Add continuous turn lane 1,400,000

LaricalJFM 969
I Safety/Op FM 973 Blake Manor to Add continuous turn lane 250,000

Lapoyner St.
I Safety/Op RM 3238 .06 miles south of SH Intersection realign 630,000

~________ 7ltoSH7l
1 Safety/Op SH 45 Kendrick Blvd and Left turn lane, shoulders and U- 960,000

FM 1826 turn
1 Safety/Op Loop 360 At Westlake Dr. Construct left turn lane for 250,000

westbound traffic
1 Safety/Op SH 71 .2 mi. west of RM Install left turn lane and add 570,000

3228 to RM 3228 paved shoulders
1 Safety/Op IH 35 Park Circle North to Widen southbound frontage 400,000

Park Circle South road construct decel lane
Priority 1 Total: 7,960,000

2 Maint. LP 275 & FM 1325 Various Locations Repair, Mill, Seal and Overlay 7,480,000
2 Maint. US 290 E IH 35 and Berkman Mill, Seal and Thin Overlay 2,000,000
2 Maint. US 183 Montopolis to SH 71 Mill, Seal and Thin Overlay 5,200,000

and Burnet to IH 35
2 Maint. Loop 1 Colorado River to Mill, Seal and Thin Overlay 7,580,000

Barton Creek
2 Maint. FM 734 Harris Branch Blvd to Rehab Roadway 8,900,000

US 290
2 Maint. FM 812 San Jose Ave to Repair, Seal and Thin Overlay 3,450,000

Bastrop Co. line
2 Maint. US 290 East of FM 973 to Underseal and Overlay 3,000,000

west Elgin City limit westbound lanes
2 Maint. US 183 RM 620 to Spicewood Mill Seal and Thin Overlay 2,750,000
2 Maint. RM 1431 Trails End Rd. to Seal and Thin Overlay 3,830,000

Lago Vista city limits
2 Maint. US 183 Loop 1 to Burnet Rd. Mill, Seal and Overlay frontage 890,000

roads
Priority 2 Total: 45,080,000

3 Added US 290 East of US 183 to east Construct 6-lane toll facility 504,000,000
Capacity of SH 130 with frontage roads

Priority 3 Total: 504,000,000
4 Trail Walnut Creek Trail Northern Walnut Construct trail 3,330,000

Creek Trail in Austin
4 Landscape US 290 1H35 to US 183 Landscape and irrigation 230,000

Priority 4 Total: 3,560,000

Austin Dist. Submittal Total: 560,600,000

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Attachment 2

Prioritized Projects Requested for Addition to TXDoT’s Travis County Submittal
(TXD0T Roadways and Off System Funded Bridges)

(Prioritized in order of importance)

Prior. Pct. Project Limits Improvement Const. Cost
1 1 Old Manor Road Bridge at Walnut Bridge Replacement, $1,670,000

(#1 13) Creek structurally deficient
1 3 FM 2304 Ravenscroft to FM Safety improvements $2,100,000

(Manchaca Road) 1626
1 3 FM 2769 City of Cedar Park Gap completion $2,000,000

to RM 620 between Anderson
Mill Road and FM
2769

1 1 FM 3177 US 290 East and Realignment with $4,000,000
FM 3177 Harris Branch

Parkway
1 1 Lund Carlson Bridge at Willow Bridge Replacement, $550,000

Road (#136) Creek functionally obsolete
1 1 Boyce Lane Bridge at Harris Bridge Replacement, $300,000

(#109) Branch Creek functionally obsolete
1 1 Old Highway 20 Bridge at Gilleland Bridge Replacement, $1,200,000

(#155) Creek functionally obsolete
1 2 Weiss Lane Bridge at Bridge Replacement, $550,000

(#229) Willbarger Creek functionally obsolete
1 3 Hamilton Pool Bridge at Bridge Replacement, $1,000,000

Road (#315) Pedernales River functionally obsolete
Total: $13,370,000

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Attachment 3
Travis County Locally Funded Project Readiness

Prioritized Travis County Locally Funded Projects To Be Added to
Economic Stimulus Package List

(Prioritized in order of improtance)
Priority IProiect Award by 91112009 lConst Cost Est

1 Slaughter Lane Bridge over Onion Creek Y $70,000
I — Ferguson-Tuscany Way Y $3,500,000
1 Blake-Manor Realignment Y $700,000
3 Howard Lane I Y $12,000,000
3 Gattis School Road Y $8,166,900
3 McKinney Falls Parkway Extension Ph I Y $3,000,000
4 Hunters Bend Roadway/Sidewalk Safety Y $500,000
4 McKinney Falls Parkway Pedestrian Way Y $760,000
4 Wells Branch PkwylThermal Dr Sidewalk Y $1,100,000
4 Gilleland Crk TrI Phase 3 Y $872,000
4 Parmer Lane IB/IIA (Public-Private-Public) Y $500,000

Travis County Locally Funded $31,168,900

Additional Travis County Locally Funded Public Works Projects Not
Meeting Letting Criteria, But Can Be Started Within 2 Years

(Prioritized in order of importance)
Priority jProject Award by 9I1!2009lConst Cost Est

1 Bridge # 109; Boyce Lane N $300,000
I Jesse Bohls Bridge #231 N $1,700,000
I Kimbro/Parsons Bridge Replacement N $3,000,000
1 — mperial Valley Drainage Improvements N $1,600,000
I — CaIdwell Lane Drainage N $350,000
1_ Hamilton Pool Road N $10,000,000
— Tuscany-Springdale N $3,500,000

3 Frate-Barker N $7,500,000
3 Howard Lane II N $18,000,000
3 McKinney Falls Parkway Extension Ph II N $3,000,000
3 Slaughter Lane Extension Ph I N $8,000,000
3 Slaughter Lane Extension Ph II N $10,000,000
3 Slaughter Lane Bridge over Marble Creek N $4,500,000
3 Braker Lane I (Public-Private-Public) N $9,000,000
3 Braker Lane II Public-Private N $13,000,000
3 Decker Lake Rd (Public-Private-Public) N $3,000,000
3 Reimers-Peacock Road N $6,000,000
4 SW Metro Park N $1,300,000
4 NE Metro Phase IV N $10,500,000
4 Onion Creek Greenbelt N $5,500,000
4 SE Metro Park, Ph II amenities N $6,000,000

Travis County Locally Funded $125,750,000

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTH and HUMAN SERVICES
And VETERANS SERVICE

100 North l.H. 35
P. 0. Box 1748

Austin, Texas 78767
Sherri E. Fleming

Executive Manager
(512) 854-4100

Fax (512) 854-4115

MEMORANDUM

Date: December 9, 2008

To: Members of the Commissioners Co 4~

S— 4~V / 404’ A’
From: Sherri E. Fleming, Ex~ cutive ~~‘~i~ger

Travis County Health and H ~ - Services and Veterans Service

Subject: Community Development BI. k Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2008 Grant
Agreement

Proposed Motion:

Consider and take appropriate action on items related to the Program Year 2008 grant
agreement for Community Development Block Grant funds provided by the U. S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD):

A. Request to execute the Program Year 2008 (PY 2008) grant agreement; and
B. Request to authorize the County Judge to sign the agreement as the certified

official.

Summary and Staff Recommendations:

Staff recommends the approval of the PY 2008 CDBG grant agreement with HUD. This
will allow staff to implement the approved PY 2008 Action Plan. The County Attorney’s
office has reviewed the agreement and a copy has been provided to the Auditor’s office
for review. The HUD agreement, a letter from the County Attorney’s office and related
correspondence is attached. Per HUD’s direction in the email attached dated 10/29/07,
the grantee name was changed from Samuel T. Biscoe to County of Travis, TX. In

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



addition, per the County Attorney’s office request, “by” was added to the signature line.
HUD recognizes the County Judge as the certifying official for all transactions unless the
Court delegates the responsibility to someone else.

Budgetary and Fiscal Impacts:

Executing the agreement allows the projects approved for PY 2008 to be implemented.

Issues and Opportunities:

In HUD’s letter attached to the grant agreement, a request was made to provide some
additional information to the Fair Housing and Economic Opportunity office regarding the
location of projects in relation to areas of minority concentration. Please find that
communication attached.

In HUD’s letter attached to the grant agreement, a request for the status on the land
acquisition project was made and a recommendation for technical assistance with the field
office was made in relation to this project and the subsequent infrastructure project. Staff
have updated the HUD field office and are receiving technical assistance to ensure the
monies are spent in an eligible manner.

In HUD’s letter attached to the grant agreement, a request for a work out plan to resolve
timeliness issues is referenced. The work out plan was submitted and approved by HUD
prior to this letter being mailed to us. HUD writes the award letter several weeks prior to it
being mailed; therefore, some items are taken care of prior to receipt of the letter by the
County.

Executing the PY 2008 CDBG grant agreement allows Travis County to move forward with
spending $833133 in community development and public service projects.

With the execution of this agreement, the County assumes HUD’s responsibility for all
environmental reviews with any HUD funding source within the County outside the City of
Austin.

Background:

Under the provisions of Title 1 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974
(42 USC 5301), the Federal government sponsors a program that provides annual grants
to cities and counties to develop viable urban communities by providing decent housing
and a suitable living environment, by expanding economic opportunities for low and
moderate income persons. HUD approved Travis County’s 2006-2010 Consolidated Plan
for the CDBG program in December 2006.

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Item#____

Travis County Commissioners’ Court Agenda Request

Meeting Date: DECEMBER 16, 2008

A. Requestor: Judge Biscoe and Phone # 854-9555
Commissioner Eckhardt

B. Specific Agenda Wording:

APPROVE RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION BY THE TRAVIS
COUNTY HISTORICAL COMMISSION FOR A TEXAS HISTORICAL MARKER AT
LIONS MUNICIPAL GOLF COURSE. (JUDGE BISCOE AND COMMISSIONER
ECKHARDT)

C. Sponsor:
County Commissioner or County Judge

A. Backup memorandum and exhibits should be attached and submitted with
this Agenda Request.

B. Please list all of the agencies or officials names and telephone numbers that
might be affected or be involved with the request.

Ill. Required Authorizations: Please check if applicable:

Planning and Budget Office (854-9106)
D Additional funding for any department or for any purpose
D Transfer of existing funds within or between any line item budget
D Grant

Human Resources DeDartment (854-9165)
D A change in your department’s personnel (reclassifications, etc.)

Purchasing Office (854-9700)
D Bid, Purchase Contract, Request for Proposal, Procurement

County Attorney’s Office (854-9415)
D Contract, Agreement, Travis County Code - Policy & Procedure

AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must
be submitted to County Judge’s office, Room 520, in writing by Tuesdays at 12:00 p.m.
for the next week’s meeting. Late or incomplete requests may be deferred to the
following week’s meeting.

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



A’

TRAVIS COUNTY MUNY HISTORIC RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION NO.

WHEREAS, the Texas Historical Commission, through its Official Texas
Historical Marker program, works with county historical commissions and
other interested parties, to place markers on sites that reveal aspects of
local history that are important to a community or region; and,

WHEREAS, the Lions Municipal Golf Course (“Muny”) was, in the wake
of Sweatt v. Painter, desegregated by the City of Austin in the spring of
1951 and was the first municipal course in the South to desegregate; and,

WHEREAS, African Americans prohibited from playing at Muny before it
was desegregated have continued to use and enjoy Muny for almost 60 years
since the course was integrated; and,

WHEREAS, the City’s decision to desegregate provided a public
recreational setting allowing friendly interaction of the races that continues
to endure to this day and is woven into the fabric of the community; and,

WHEREAS, the Travis County Historical Commission, at its December 3rd

2008 meeting, voted to send the Texas Historical Marker Sponsorship
Application for the Lions Municipal Golf Course to the Texas Historical
Commission with a favorable recommendation; and,

WHEREAS, the historic marker application enjoys broad support from
sponsors in both East and West Austin including: Save Muny, Ebenezer
Baptist Church, First Evangelical Free Church, First Baptist Church of
Austin, Mt. Olive Baptist Church, St. James Episcopal Church, Temple Beth
Israel, Congregation Kol Haley, The Texas Civil Rights Project, Huston
Tillotson University, the Austin Black Lawyers Association, the First
Unitarian Church of Austin, and the Austin Chapter of the NAACP;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSIONERS
OF TRAVIS COUNTY:

That the Travis County Commissioners, on the basis of the early
desegregation of the Lions Municipal Golf Course and the bonds of affection

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Muny enjoys in this community, support and recommend the application to
the Texas Historic Commission for a historical marker at Muny.

APPROVED: 2008 ATTEST:

Travis County Clerk

Dana DeBeauvoir

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



[(12/12/2008) Sam Biscoe -Re~MunyResofti~on

From: “Bob Ozer” <bozer~grandecom .net>
To: “Sam Biscoe” <Sam. Biscoe@co.travis.tx.us>
CC: “Sarah Eckhardt” <Sarah.Eckharcit@co.travis.tx.us>, “peter Barbour” <pete...
Date: 12/11/2008 8:54 PM
Subject: Re: Muny Resolution

Thanks Judge. I think we would prefer the 16th. If that can’t be done we
will go with the 23rd. Please confirm the date and let us know what time
approximately it will be on the agenda if you can. Thanks again, Bob.

Original Message
From: “Sam Biscoe” <Sam.Biscoe@co.travis.tx.us>
To: “Bob Ozer” <bozer~grandecom.net>
Cc: “Sarah Eckhardt” <Sarah.Eckhardt@co.travis.tx.us>
Sent: Thursday, December 11, 2008 5:51 PM
Subject: Re: Muny Resolution

> Bob, I can put this on as an added item next Tuesday, December 16. Is
> that your preference? The alternative date is December 23.
>

>>>> “Bob Ozer” <bozer~grandecom.net> 12/10/2008 10:05 PM >>>

> Judge Biscoe:
>

> As I noted in the e-mail sent to the commissioners and copied to you, the
> Travis County Historical Commission has already sent the application for a
> marker to the Texas Historical Commission with a favorable recommendation
> and we have passed a preliminary review at the state level. I think based
> on discussions with their staff they will act on the application within a
> couple of months after the new year.
>

> I am attaching a copy of a draft resolution that you may wish to modify.
> We were hoping to get this on the agenda for the 16th but we may be too
> late. I will coordinate with Josie on that and get the timing from her as
> to when is the next session that we can get on the agenda.
>

> By the way, Barry Hutheson was very helpful in getting our application
> ready for the TCHC and Mary Arnold and I went to their meeting last week
> to meet and thank him.
>

> Thanks again for your help. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you
> should have any questions or if I can be of any further assistance.
>

> Sincerely
>

> Bob Ozer
> cell (best): 512-913-3953
> home: 512-477-1900
>

>

>

>

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Page 1 of 1

Josie Zavala - Muny Desegregationl Marker Update

From: “Bob Ozer” <bozer~grandecom.net>
To: <ron.davis@co.travis.tx.us>, <gera1d.daugherty~co.travis.tx.us>,

<Sarah.Eckhardt@co.travis.tx.us>, <commissioner.gomez~co.travis.tx.us>
Date: 12/10/2008 10:08 PM
Subject: Muny Desegregation! Marker Update
CC: <sam.Biscoe@co.travis.tx.us>, <josie.zava1a~co.travis.tx.us>
Attachments: memoll (final) rev.doc; muny.Appendix.doc

Dear Commissioners:

Attached please find the narrative and documents (both previously supplied to Judge Biscoe) that we have
submitted in support of our application for a historical marker at Muny. The Travis County Historical Commission
has already forwarded the application to the Texas Historical Commission with a favorable recommendation. In
addition, the application has passed a preliminary review at the Texas Historical Commission but we do not
expect a final decision until at least a couple of months after the beginning of the year.

We will be coordinating with Judge Biscoe on a resolution in support of our application for a marker.

Thank you very much for your consideration. If you should have any questions or if I can be of any further
assistance please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely

Bob Ozer
cell (best):51 2-913-3953
home: 512-477-1900

file://C :\Documents and Settings\ZavalaJ\Local Settings\Temp\XPgrpwise\49403DC3bpo... 12/11/2008

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



In the Shadow of Sweatt v. Painter: The Desegregation of Muny

Historical Context: Muny, Jim Crow, and Sweatt v. Painter

In 1924 Lions Club members established an organization known as the Austin Municipal

Golf and Amusement Association with the intent to establish the first municipal’ golf

course and clubhouse in Austin. A lease for a portion of the Brackenridge Tract in West

Austin owned by the University of Texas was executed on May 31, 1924 between the

Board of Regents and the Association. By the fall of 1924 the heavily wooded tract had

been converted into an attractive nine-hole golf course. An additional nine holes was

subsequently added before the clubhouse for the course was opened on January 16,

1930.2 Though there have been many renovations to the course over the years, this

marked the completion of the Lions Municipal Golf Course (“Muny”) in the basic form

in which it exists today.

On December 17, 1936, the Association’s lease with UT was transferred to the City of

Austin. The Association also deeded to the City a brick veneer clubhouse along with the

furniture and fixtures including a piano, soda water equipment, beer dispenser (and

merchandise), two room dwelling for the groundkeeper, lawn and fairway mowers, a

mule shed, and two mules.3 The Association was dissolved on April 21, 1938 and since

that time the golf course has been known by several names but often summarized with

the nickname “Lions’ Muny”4 or, more succinctly: “Muny.”

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Pursuant to the “almost uniform practice” throughout the South with public recreational

facilities during the Jim Crow era,5 Muny was segregated from its inception. However, a

photograph in a private collection clearly shows African American laborers working on

clearing a fairway when the golf course was being built.6 It is not surprising that African

American laborers helped build Muny since the golf course was located less than a mile

from Clarksville, a historically black community that was built on plantation land given

by Governor Elisha M. Pease to his emancipated slaves with the hope that they would

remain near his mansion for further service.7 In the mid to late 1 940s and early 1 950s

before it was integrated, General Marshall, now a retired African American educator but

then a teenager, and Dr. William Bacon, a retired African American orthopedist living in

Nashville who grew up with General Marshall, used to walk from their homes in

Clarksville to caddie at Muny.8

Despite African Americans fighting and dying in Europe and the Pacific in World War II,

the start of post-war period in America was still governed by Jim Crow and the doctrine

of separate but equal blessed by the Supreme Court in Plessy v. Ferguson, 163 U.S. 537

(l896).~ In Austin, African Americans were relegated to playing golf in places like

Rosewood Playground where there were complaints of golf balls hitting children as well

as breaking windows and windshields.’0

However, legal theories developed by Thurgood Marshall working with the NAACP in

cases such as Sweatt v. Painter, 339 U.S. 629 (1950) helped to substantially erode the

doctrine of separate but equal in the context of post graduate schools and higher

education.” The Sweatt decision, which arose out of the University of Texas Law

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



School in Austin, ruled that separate law school facilities provided to Heman Sweatt

at the University did not provide him an educational opportunity equal to that of white

students at the Law School. Although not overruling Plessy v. Ferguson, the decision

held Sweatt must be admitted to the University of Texas Law School.’2 Because the

Sweatt case arose out of Austin it received extensive publicity in the local press when it

was decided.’3 Moreover, developments at the University in the aftermath of the Sweatt

and McLaurin cases were also extensively reported.’4

Narrative Overview: Dr. Givens, Emma Long and Mayor Glass, Two Black Youths and
a “Little Clubhousefor the Blacks”

It is in the shadow of the Sweatt case that the early events leading up to the desegregation

of Muny must be viewed. Initially, under pressure from African American leaders such

as Dr. Everett Givens and Henry Pryor, Mayor Taylor Glass (1949-1951) anticipated

building a separate nine-hole golf course for African Americans in East Austin.’5

However, Councilmember Emma Long thought it was not cost effective to build a

separate course for African American golfers when the city had other pressing demands

on its budget. Instead she suggested in council session on April 5, 1951, that African

American golfers play on the courses the city already had.’6 Although her public

reasoning was in economic terms, the implicit subtext was clear: If Heman Sweatt can

go to law school with white students, why can’t blacks play on the same golf course as

whites?

It appears that about the same time that Emma Long was making her suggestions in

council session and shortly before the end ofMayor Glass’s term in late April of 1951,17

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



an incident occurred that resulted in Muny’s desegregation. This incident involved two

black youths reportedly playing golf at Muny. The Mayor, after rushing to City Hall,

consulted with two other council members, Mayor Pro Tern Bill Drake and Will Johnson.

These council members then determined to let the two black youths continue their play at

Muny.’8 The course was integrated at that time and, according to interviews with former

African American caddies, blacks could play freely thereafter at Muny.’9 In fact, shortly

after it was integrated, Joe Louis, the former heavyweight champion (1937-49), came

through Austin and played the course.2°

A reasonable conclusion to be drawn from this history is that, particularly in the context

of Sweatt v. Painter, the white male council establishment followed Emma Long’s

reasoning and determined that it just wasn’t economically pragmatic to construct a new

golf course for the few African American golfers in the city. In short, the path of least

resistance was to let blacks play at Muny.2’

Despite the integration of the course, a separate lounge or club house meant to provide

separate showers was constructed for black golfers at Muny around June of 1951. That

structure no longer stands but council records, bids, and newspaper articles allow us to

pin down the approximate date of its construction and thereby provide further evidence

for the date of the desegregation of the course itself.22 The existence of “this little

clubhouse 20 x 18, cement blocks, for the blacks” is also established by interviews with

Emma Long and by City Council minutes.23 A photograph of the little clubhouse is

attached to this application.24

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



The relatively quiet manner in which Muny was desegregated without publicized council

action is not unusual according to an official at the Texas Historical Commission25 and

reflected the desire of Austin’s public officials to avoid a backlash in the white

community.26 In addition, it is apparent that since the Mayor was close to the end of his

term he would pay little political price for what was obviously a controversial decision.27

However, it should be noted that the desegregation ofpublic libraries (1951) and the fire

department (1952) in Austin were also early and well before the Supreme Court decided

Brown v. Board of Education, 347 U.S. 483 (1954). This persistent pattern of

desegregation ofpublic facilities in the early 1950s illustrates a city in the South of the

old confederacy with an unusually progressive attitude on issues of race. And the legal

framework for this progressive attitude was Sweatt v. Painter.

Historical Significance: Muny was the First Public Golf Course in the Southern States
ofthe Old Confederacy to Desegregate

The determination to desegregate Muny was made while other jurisdictions in the South

were resisting integration and the dates of decisions in court cases in Miami, Houston,

Beaumont, Atlanta and Nashville all show that Austin was earlier than these jurisdictions

in desegregating its golf course and unusual in not fighting integration in court. No case

illustrates this better than litigation which arose in Miami in the early 1950s in the

aftermath of Sweatt and McLaurin.

In the Rice v. Arnold case finally decided in 1952, the Florida Supreme Court affirmed a

lower court decision where a separate but equal rationale was applied to allot blacks to a

golf course in Miami only one day a week.28 The U.S. Supreme Court vacated and

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



remanded to the Florida Supreme Court for reconsideration in light of the Sweatt and

MeLaurin cases. On remand, the Florida Supreme Court affirmed its previous judgment

by distinguishing golf courses from institutions of higher education and refusing to apply

the Sweatt and McLaurin cases in the context of a public golf course. The Supreme Court

did not disturb this result. Hence, both Florida’s highest court and the United States

Supreme Court were unwilling as a matter of law to integrate a public golf course in

Florida at almost the same time that the Austin City Council integrated Muny voluntarily

as a matter ofpolicy shortly after the Sweatt case was decided.

A result similar to the Rice case (though not discussing the Sweatt case) was reached in a

lower court decision arising out ofNashville at about the same time in 1952.29

Change was to set in only after Brown was decided in 1954 as exemplified by cases

arising from Houston, Beaumont, and Atlanta.

In Beal v. Holcombe, the Mayor of the City of Houston appealed to the Supreme Court

in a case that allowed African American access to municipal golf facilities, although

“preserving segregation.”3° The case was pending before the Supreme Court for almost

two years from June 5, 1952, until certiorari was denied on May 24, 1954, little more

than a week after the decision in Brown.3’ Shortly after the denial of certiorari, the City

of Houston integrated its three municipal golf courses because its city attorney believed

that as “a practical matter” Houston’s segregated facilities would not survive further

judicial scrutiny.32

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



More than a year later, the Tyrell Park municipal golf course in Beaumont was

desegregated in September of 1955 pursuant to litigation brought in federal court earlier

in the summer.33

Atlanta continued the fight even longer until November 7, 1955, when the issue of

integrating golf courses was finally put squarely to rest by the Supreme Court in Holmes

v. City of Atlanta.34

It is important to note that even after Supreme Court decisions in the Brown and Holmes

cases, court decisions indicate active resistance to integration across the South by

transferring or leasing public facilities to private golf clubs or by allowing play on public

courses only if a member of a private association that excluded African Americans.35 In

addition, research obtained through an interview with Travis County Commissioners’

Court Judge Sam Biscoe, who was a caddie in Tyler, Texas in the late 1950s and early

1 960s, indicates that blacks were not allowed to play even at that late date in that region

of the state.36

Given this historical background ofwhite resistance to desegregation ofmunicipal

recreational facilities throughout the 1 950s and 1 960s, two conclusions seem inescapable.

First, the desegregation of Muny is without question the first instance in the Southern

states of the old confederacy when a municipal golf course was integrated.37 This

conclusion has been confirmed by Professor Marvin Dawkins, the leading academic

authority on African American golf during the Jim Crow era who noted that “the

evidence which has now been assembled substantiates the contention that Muny was the

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



first municipal golf course in the South to formally desegregate” thereby displacing other

courses formerly thought to have held that distinction.38

Second, the actions of the Austin City Council in early 1951 seem all the more

remarkable given both the reluctance of the United States Supreme Court to apply the

Sweatt and McLaurin cases to golf courses in the Rice case and the stiff resistance to the

integration of municipal golf courses in other jurisdictions. In the shadow of Sweatt v.

Painter Austin’s public officials got it right: Given all the options, it was easier to just let

black and white golfers play the game at Muny. And, though couched in economic terms,

the City’s decision represented a long stride toward racial equality in Austin and the

South by providing from an early date a public recreational setting allowing friendly

interaction of the races that to this day continues to endure and is woven into the fabric of

the community.39

DOCUMENTATION

A private golf club, the Austin Country Club, had been founded in 1899.
2 Austin American, January 16, 1930, “Clubhouse and Golf Course Result of Prolonged Effort,”

(Document 1); Austin American, January 4, 1930, “Lion Golfers to Hold Meet Sunday,” (Document 2).
~ Ford, Alan W., Austin Lions Municipal Golf Course Historical Notes (Austin Downtown Lions Club June

2008).
41d. at2.
~ McKay, Robert, “Segregation and Public Recreation,” 40 Virginia Law Review 697, 700 (1954); Kirsch,

George B., “Municipal Golf and Civil Rights in the United States, 1910-1965,” 92 Journal of African
American History 371 at 373-74, 379 (2007).
6 photograph (Document 3) is in the private collection of Tinsley Penick, the son of the legendary golf

instructor Harvey Pemck. Tom Penick, Harvey’s older brother, was the head pro at Muny from 1928-6 1
and may have either designed or had a role in designing the course. Golf Texas: Lions Municipal Golf
Course - Texas Golf Courses Dallas Fort Worth San Antonio Austin Golf Travel Golf Vacation Packages
Golf Resorts
~ of Texas Online - CLARKSVJLLE, TX
~ General Marshall, Interview (Taped) with Robert Ozer and Ken Tiemann, November 22, 2008 (to be filed

and transcribed at the Austin History Center); Dr. William Bacon, Telephone Interview with Robert Ozer,
November 22, 2008. General Marshall noted he was paid 85 cents for eighteen holes or 50 cents for nine
holes. He also had to pay 5 cents at the clubhouse to cover any medical costs if he was injured while
caddying. He could carry two bags and get double the fee and frequently received tips.

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Law v. Mayor and City Council of Baltimore, 78 F. Supp. 346 (District Ct. Maryland, 1948) was the
leading post war case applying this well established doctrine to a golf course.
~ Austin City Council Minutes, September 7, 1950 (Document 4). Austin City Council Minutes are on file

at the Austin History Center.
~ See: Kluger, Richard, Simple Justice (Knopf, 1975) at 256-284; Patterson, James, Brown v. Board of

Education (Oxford, 2001) at 16-19.
12 See also: McLaurin v. Oklahoma State Regents, 339 U.S. 637 (1950) (admitting black student to

graduate school on a “segregated basis” deprived him of equal protection).
13 Austin American, June 6, 1950, “Sweatt UT Plea Upheld,” at 1 (Document 5).
14 Austin Statesman, June 7, 1950, “Two Negroes Enter UT,” at 1 (Document 6); Austin American, June 7,

1 950,”UT Approves 3 Negroes for Immediate Entrance,” at 1 (Document 7); See also: Duren, Almetris
Marsh (in association with Louise Iscoe), Overcoming: A History of Black Integration at the University of
Texas at Austin (UT Press 1979).
~ Austin City Council Minutes, September 7, 1950 (Document 4) and January 25, 1951 (Document 8).
16 Austin City Council Minutes, April 5, 1951 (Document No. 9); see also: Emma Long, Interview with Joe

O’Neal, June 10, 1974, at 11 (Document No. 10). Long Interview with Anthony 0mm, June 3, 1981, at 7-
8 (Document No.11) and Long Interview with Anthony 0mm, dated April 13, 1982 at page 72 (Document
12). Long transcribed interviews are on file at the Austin History Center. See also: Long Interview (Taped)
with Ken Tiemann, Peter Barbour, General Marshall and Robert Ozer, July 17, 2008 (to be filed and
transcribed at the Austin History Center).
‘~ Austin City Council Minutes, April 26, 1951 (Document No. 13; last City Council meeting of Mayor

Glass); Austin City Council Minutes, May 3, 1951 (Document No. 14; first City Council Meeting of Mayor
Drake).
18 Mayor Taylor Glass, Interview with Joe O’Neal, May 23, 1974, at pages 9-10 (Document No. 15; on file

at Austin History Center). It is important to note that Emma Long’s recollection in the interviews noted in
fn. 15 supra was that the desegregation took place during the term of Mayor Tom Miller (1933-49 and
1955-61). This is so even though she dated the desegregation squarely in Mayor Glass’s term in 1950 or
1951 in the June 3, 1981 interview with Anthony 0mm. 0mm, relying on his interview with Long, did not
catch the mistake, referring in his book to the desegregation events taking place during Mayor Miller’s term
when in fact they occurred during Mayor Glass’s term. 0mm, Anthony, Power, Money, and the People:
The Making of Modem Austin (Texas Monthly Press 1987) at 213.
19 Interview with Ozer and Tiemann, November 22, 2008. There is confusion about whether there

were restrictions on tee times for blacks after the desegregation. According to an article appearing in the
Austin American Statesman, Doc Curry, a local African American golfer (now deceased), was quoted as
saying black golfers teed off between 6:30 and 7 in the morning. Austin American Statesman, February 24,
2000, “Remembering An Era When City Golf Facilities Weren’t Open To All.” However, General
Marshall has no personal recollection of any restrictions on time and indicated in his interview that if there
were any they didn’t last long and that they possibly were restrictions on tee times only, not access to the
course. His recollection was that African Americans had access to the course every day without restriction.
Marshall e-mail to Tiemann, August 24, 2008 (Document No. 16); See also: Austin American Statesman,
October 26, 2008, “Muny’s Past Might Yield New Future, Backers Say,” at Al. This is corroborated by Dr.
William Bacon who also grew up caddying at Muny. He recalls that there were no restrictions on play after
the course was integrated and African American golfers from Dallas and Houston often played on Sunday
afternoon, not early in the morning. He also notes that Doc Curry, who was a professor, didn’t come to
Austin until 1952 or 1953 and wasn’t in Austin when the course was integrated. Bacon Telephone
Interview with Ozer, November 22, 2008. Given that the February 2000 article appears to be wrong, it
should be noted that another newspaper article mistakenly dated the desegregation of Muny in 1959 rather
than the correct date of spring 1951 as demonstrated herein. Austin American Statesman, February 26,
1995, “Playing Through,” at E9.
20 Bacon Telephone Interview with Ozer, November 22, 2008. Joe Louis became something of a “black

golf ambassador” attracting black celebrities to the game, increasing its visibility among blacks, and
fighting racially exclusionary practices by the white golf establishment. Dawkins, Marvin and Kinloch,
Graham, African American Golfers During the Jim Crow Era, (Praeger 2000), ChapterS at 65-84; See also:
Kennedy, John H., A Course of their Own: A History of African American Golfers (Bison 2005) at 65-81.

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



21 See: 0mm, Power, Money, and the People at 213; Humphrey, David, Austin: An Illustrated History,

(Windsor Publications 1985), at 215; Glass Interview with Joe O’Neal, May 23, 1974, at 9-10.
22 Austin City Council Resolution signed by Mayor Drake and dated June 8, 1951 (Document No. 17;

supporting bid for construction of a lounge at the Municipal Golf Course by Frank Rundell); American-
Statesman, June 10, 1951, atA-13 (Document 18); American-Statesman, June 10, 1951, “Rundell Low
Bidder for 3 Shelters,” at A-i 3 (Document 19; referencing a “Negro lounge at the Municipal golf course”);
American-Statesman, June 10, 1951, “Contracts Due on Three Jobs,” at A- 13 (Document 20; referencing
for a second time on the same page the Rundell contract for a “Negro lounge at the Municipal golf
course”); Austin City Council Minutes, June 14, 1951 (Document 21; City Council accepts Rundell’s bid
and authorizes city manager to execute contract with Rundell for a “lounge at the Municipal Golf Course”).
23 Long Interview with Joe O’Neal, June 10, 1974, at 11 (Document No. 10: “They built this little

clubhouse 20 X 18, cement blocks, for the blacks to use for changing clothes; for the black people who
played at the Municipal golf course. I don’t know how long they used that, but they were going to have a
lounge and dressing rooms. And I guess it was built. I think we took contracts for it, and I guess I went
along with it because I certainly thought that after all they needed a place to dress and I guess they’d be
too timid to dress in the clubhouse.”); Long Interview with Anthony 0mm, June 3, 1981, at 7-8 (Document
No. 11: “And they built them—about several feet from the clubhouse, they built a little house where they
could dress.”); Austin City Council Minutes, July 3, 1952 (Document No. 22; noting that cold drinks and
refreshments for the “colored golfers” were available at the window provided and “the players could take
them to the lounge that had been provided.”)
24 The photograph is in the private collection of General Marshall (Document No. 23).
25 Telephone Conversation between Robert Ozer and Gregory Smith, National Register Coordinator, Texas

Historical Commission, July 17, 2008.
26 One such backlash occurred in Beaumont. In the summer of 1954 after the decision in Brown and the

desegregation of municipal courses in nearby Houston, the Mayor of Beaumont sought to open the Tyrell
Park municipal golf course to blacks but was forced to revoke his decision after community reaction.
Robertson, Robert 3., Fair Ways: How Six Black Golfers Won Civil Rights in Beaumont, Texas, (Texas
A&M University Press 2005) at 84-89; Kirsch, “Municipal Golf and Civil Rights in the United States,” at
384.
27 Glass Interview with Joe O’Neal, May 23, 1974, at 9-10.
28 Rice v. Arnold, 45 So.2d 195 (Fla. 1950), judg. vacated, 340 U.S. 848 (1950), judg. of Fla. cir. ct. aff’d

54 So.2d 114 (Fla. 1951), cert. denied 342 U.S. 946 (1952).
29 Hayes v. Crutcher, 108 F. Supp. 582, 586 (M.D. Tenn. 1952) (in golf course case defendants required

“while maintaining segregation, to afford equal facilities, apportioned to the need, to the segregated
groups”).
30 Beal v. Holcombe, 193 F. 2d 384 (5th Cir. 1951), cert. denied, 347 U.S. 974 (1954).
31 McKay, “Segregation and Public Recreation,” at 715.
32 Id., at 716, fn. 97; Robertson, Fair Ways: How Six Black Golfers Won Civil Rights at 83-84.
~ Fayson v. Beard, 134 F. Supp. 379 (E.D. Tex. 1955); See also: Robertson, Fair Ways: How Six Black

Golfers Won Civil Rights at 155-63.
~‘ Holmes v. City of Atlanta, 223 F.2d 93 (5th Cir. 1955), cert. granted and decision vacated 350 U.S. 879

(1955) (post-Brown Supreme Court order eliminating segregation of municipal golf facilities); NYTimes,
November 5, 1995, “40 Years Ago: A Drive Down the Fairway for Integration” (discussing Atlanta case);
see also: NYTimes, November 18, 1956, “Desegregation Slowly But Surely Gaining New Ground”
(“Sixteen Southern cities have opened public golf courses to Negroes.. .in the past two years.”).
~ Simkins v. City of Greensboro, 149 F. Supp. 562 (Dist. Ct., M. D. North Carolina, Greensboro Div.

1957) aff’d 246 F. 2d 425 (4th Cir. 1957) (municipality cannot avoid giving equal treatment to Blacks by
leasing to private non-profit club); Griffis v. City of Fort Lauderdale, 104 So. 2d 33 (Supreme Court of
Florida, 1958) (sale of public golf course to private golf association for adequate consideration did not
violate 14th amendment rights even though course was under federal court decree to integrate); Wesley v.
City of Savannah, 294 F. Supp. 698 (Dist. Ct. S.D. Georgia, Savannah Div. 1969) (city golf championship
played on public course but sponsored by private association that excluded blacks from play violated Civil
Rights Act of 1964 and 14th Amendment); See also: Dawkins and Kinloch, African American Golfers
During the Jim Crow Era, (authoritative discussion of desegregation of public courses at Chapter 8, 137-
152).

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



36 Travis County Commissioners’ Court Judge Sam Biscoe, Telephone Interview with Robert Ozer, July

11, 2008; See also: Kirsch, “Municipal Golf and Civil Rights in the United States,” at 388-389 (noting
“mixed results” in desegregating municipal golf courses in southern cities in 1950s and early 1960s with
changes in some cities not manifest until after passage of the Civil Rights Act of 1964). It should be noted
that in public remarb preceding an interfaith golf tournament held at Muny on October 26, 2008 to
celebrate its history, Judge Biscoe recalled that during his time as a caddie, caddies typically earned $1.00
per nine per bag. This is somewhat better than what caddies received at Muny in the late 1 940s and early
1950s. See fn. 7 supra.
~ is a suggestion in a book on boxing that Corpus Christi may hold the runner up spot in

desegregating its municipal golf course (but not the locker room or clubhouse) in 1953. Sammons, Jeffrey,
“Beyond the Ring: The Role of Boxing in American Society,” (University of Illinois Press 1990) at 186
n. 16. The footnote references a letter from H. J. Williams, M.D., president of the Corpus Christi branch of
the NAACP to Bill Will, Corpus Christi Park and Recreation Department dated June 5, 1954. However,
the letter was not individually archived at the Barker Library of Texas History at the University of Texas
and could not be located.
38 Professor Marvm Dawkins, Remarks made at Muny Interfaith Golf Tournament, October 26, 2008
(Document 24; also noting that a course, such as Muny, in a jurisdiction that did not actively resist
desegregation is less likely to be the subject of scholarly attention); Dawkins e-mail correspondence to
Robert Ozer, November 26, 2008 (Document 25); See also: Austin American Statesman, October 26, 2008,
“Muny’s Past Might Yield New Future, Backers Say,” at Al 0-11; e-mail correspondence to Robert Ozer,
September 15, 2008. Although the book Professor Dawkins co-authored, African American Golfers during
the Jim Crow Era, is the leading academic authority in this area, there are several journalistic accounts
dealing with African American golf and American culture that are very useful. See: McDaniel, Pete,
Uneven Lies: The Heroic Story of African Americans in Golf (The American Golfer 2000); Sinette, Calvin,
Forbidden Fairways: African Americans and the Game of Golf (Gale Cengage 1998); Kennedy, A Course
of their Own: A History of African American Golfers; See also: Dawkins, Marvin P. and Tellison, A. C.,
“[African Americans and] Golf’ in Todd Boyd (Editor), African Americans and Popular Culture, Vol. II,
Sports (Praeger, 2008), at 53-66; Dawkins, Marvin P., Race Relations and the Sport of Golf: The African
American Legacy, The Western Journal of Black Studies, Vol. 27, No. 4, (2003) at 231; Dawkins, Marvin
P., African American Golfers in the Age of Jim Crow, The Western Journal of Black Studies, Vol. 20, No.
1, (1996) at 39.
~ Roger Paynter, the pastor at First Baptist Church of Austin notes that Volma Overton, Sr., for many years

the head of the NAACP in Austin and the first African American congregant at First Baptist (as well as a
member for over forty years), played golf every Friday at Muny. Dr. Paynter was often able to join him as
the only white in the foursome. Dr. Roger Paynter e-mail to Robert Ozer, October 4, 2008. Dr. Paynter
played in the interfaith golf tournament on October 26, 2008, celebrating Muny’s history as did Volma
Overton, Jr., the son of Volrna, Sr. who is now deceased.

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



4a~j~ r~q~ ..~ qi
• ~) ~ - ‘S~ Ill• 110 N

U ~ll~•INpJOf — •

1L~ ~ •~-~ ~

I~ ~ .~‘— . iI’P’c ‘ci ii

— 41 1 111 - ~ m.-q, i ‘fl
I uWX 1,13 ~ II Iffi I IJU4~3 ~a

~ ~ I • 91) ‘11111 q~ It~1 ~a’
~ - - • •~.

I qi ~tupp~ *~
II— • I cci cii ~ ‘ci ‘c 92

ciI~ ~ 9J I~I I Ii VIIV 91911 p..de ha ‘ci ii
I I IItt) it liii v ~ ~ ‘c~ ~- ~ ‘i ~, na ~.wi’ ~ui ~ ~ —

OUJ •33 :.P~II1~ 191 99 ‘cI 13 acJ. ~1opp j3 ~ is •
La,, z~ Inj~) ci • 9’ ~ ~ ~ u.j pu sq cia tu a

JD~J3W 03 pIT 30 ~41 ~ ~II to p pr; £

921 sflOI loin? I 51 pup~, i all 39L Iji 3?

J ~u~unoo~

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



1 1U~WflDOG

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



E ~U~Wfl3OU

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 4

CITY OF AUS1~N, tEXAS -

H
MINUTES OF THE CITT COUNCIL

CITY O1~ ArSTIN, .~EXAS

Regulsr Meeting

• September 7, 1950
lO;OO A~M,

Cou~icil Chamber, City Hall

DR. EV!RJ~ G~V~1S, representing the Negro Citizens Councii, appeared be
fore the Council stating he had. a petition representing ninety-two homes that
had no water, and aeked that these peoole be taken into the City limits, which
would include EAS~FThID, M~SO~ i~I~D, CE~RNO8KY No. 7 and No. 8. Re stated anoth r
petItion was signed. by 67 persona, whose closest water ‘plug w~s between~ three
and five blocke, and the fire insurance was so high1 they could not afford topa~’
it.

ETh’R! ?R!OR came before the Council stating people were playing golf on
the Rosewood. Pla7ground., and the balls were hitting tha children, were breaking
windows and windshields. He complained, of the you.ng boys’ profanity. ¶~he matter1~
of the profanity was referred. to the Recreati~n Department to straighten o,~.t
th~ou~h ~2ORGE MA3SO~T, Ros ewood. Park. The Mayor ~iir~eg ted that plane be nmade
to provide a nine-hole go~.f course for the colored people in that part of town.

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 5

u~

UT Will Admit Him i

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 6

U~tin
* Th CRPItILI ~lty N ‘a r

5 AUSTUJ, T A. W~ NKSI) .

Oil Comp.
idelan. L

Marshall Claims Inaction
Dangerous Path for US

W mNoro~1 Jun. 1 .4~.... .npo,~qi I. • fatal pco.m,,c.” Ii,
~ (*~i~a C Merl!.Il W.d~ 1,11.,.. .1
‘and. w44 “i8. m~.e o.ng.,,~, I in no. ae,an~ In 1mg ,.n

Ui~nW’ thq 1111 lad 11,1., r.fld~ l,• ~ IO0~*~n *144. to lb. tdIII1 14
iq a i UniDaattnl ~, •,~,. ~ ~ ~ t~l• .II~ I ltao~ .1 m.l.,I.llp
m,anl •III*1I~OO lad ft~

Tile w.,tlltm Ann Cl~ ,1 9, taIl L,.bna.Il g Ot~ be. .l.l.m.fll Ib.t
roa,,mt.d mat u,. multiat ~ 10.11 00 aetild te. 1.1.1 M.f.hatl
.1.1 p~c,Cmn. an f4il .n~aee1.g. rolhar ad n..ng Id
il~aaI datar Hici~1a 19 •~ bet,.. h~ nc~~c 4* WI0
Wralern kutopa I) •bI* 16 d*Und h.nda I he u.n ra pollUca’

MARbIIe%Lt. AGaslo) ,.hoIa.‘rtt*.s IS a Ita*.td, ha iaId. heirlanIl tIlt, Gvnq~.I Onb.. N.
I am tOfllffleld lh.l 10 all ItI.dlr~ h.Irmaq at Iha J I

Impoleol 4, lb. anrol dan.tlo~, Cha.t. 4$ OL.tl n’I~* i.4$ Iha ann*
WeOt WI’ 1*11 dO~ pant i ra.an.d 10 .11.14 W a1~

‘71,. g.iwi.I. who a. wrr.lar~ of fai.apet ,ro.oiwt,I. ill) -
~e.l. .ulhá,.d II,. M.’*h.Ij Plan Lh.fll IalItf)td befo,. ha.
tO. ~.alopra0 ~l~l7 •pVI’.ctd III~ ~d~i
b.1.’ia l~. flou~v rm. s& Att.,an I lInk Ihal I. lba car. an.
L0.1 Illaa Pc°anh I,) the PIPI~ n, Mar,iloU- II. urgad Cong,... to conilme. tue lohiliW l.wtmht?. II. .44.4
pnvvo.n of .pn* aId I,, Wralmn Zfl~~ CV IS
l~utoi.. rallIes II ~4t.I a .ne,.le ~ rail pu~t~ op tIll n,oa-a~, .n~
a. WCII H IlL..~ atiW. ruienc.,, .o~ ill. t I

~ip.I’lfltall? Ua,ah.II bachad ~,, .nn.17 , nw’aII
J’~.ldtDI TIIIUIW. requeli t Illo,eJlalI warn ~due In app...
Il.2U,i~eO~) In arm. a In, to,. a .loa.,1 16.
Iha I I,iceJ ye.1 b~4$nI ni july hanaIlt 101.150 ella 11115

In I ah.,nvon.
peshlng wllh,.,I (wIan. lbs ~15’ Two ftnpt,blk.fl a
nb.tVvfd that lb. ~la1 Unt . poa~d i.rllr~ thaI HI p

IlIl, lb. mof. nahe a roan, I,. In atudy lb. pa AG
blood 4.tlal*ft1 an HI hem tindeng an a

,‘ dali. imur rot anlan r.,,y all.. aba La ra- -
II ...mrn tel ow I~ p11 It . IOVC’Y - a i

Stan IM , I Man

nter (fT IlIn*nwh~tfl~ •

4

1e~aj ta,, rig Ire gi forms 4aundrra and
.notla.r dt~o him I(,CIh ,,I Warn l~rd

nor lb. flail ft thCtr rare In mItt
ia graduate chool

a
a

ii bnr I

.llh. I~.1

oes

At’
Walt
Cal,
I. Pla.

aft,, p
SI V

.4

• ii and beg ft tillIng t p1.11111 ii ,.~ atratlon form.
own aakt r t.IraUOn cit th~ Iwo grw~uöIe oil I. Wan

In mmeipIOt ty d
sea g a In archItroflIr’ H Ift

C. I# tot a I a In Va I.I a lb. -Ste CI’

Wihout I
I- V P ..I&

II~ 14
- •41p sea

a II

Is.

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



I

It LILI

Ifl

L ~U~T.UflOOU

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 8

CITY OF AUSTJN. TEXAS ~

MTNTJTZS OF Tilt CITY COUNCIL

CWY OF AUSTIN, TEXAS

Regular Meeting

January 25, 1951.
10:00 A.M.

Council Chamber, Oity Hat].

¼ —— t .,

R. E. L GIIflS aypeared before the C&LDcit Asking that a fire station be
located in East Austin; that anotin ;ark be developed; a nurses’ home for
the colored nurses be cous~.ered at 14th and Sabine; a golf course located in
hat Austin; use of the facilities at Brackenridge Boepital by colored &octors~
that the veranda from the operating room to the annex be enclosed so that
patients ‘being taken from t~e ojeratirig room to their rooms would not be:expoee~j;
traffic lights at 12th and Chicon end. at Rosewood and. Chicon; and playground
equipment placed on yubiic school grounds. It was stated the Fire Station site
is under study by the Fire Department; the playground was tnciuded in a. study
by the Recreeiticrn Department; a golf course was being planned.; and the playgrow 1.
equtpnerit ‘was already coieed it plea w~tb the 3~bo1 !owb ~,, The use of the
facilities at Brackenridge Kospital would come under the Medical Stiff at Dracki -

ridge Boepital, and the Medical Society. The enclosure of the veranda is in
cluded in the ‘improvement plan of the Hospital. The Cit7 Manager stated a meet•
lug would be held. with the Staff and the new Administrator soon after Pebruary
1 1951, and various matters wotid be presented then.

8

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 9

CITY O~ AUSTIN, TEXAS =~~—-——~~• ______

I4INTJTES O~ T~I CI?.! C0U1~C11~

CITY 0? AUSTIN, ~r!XAS

Regular Meeting

pril 5, 1951.
10:00 A.M

Council Chamber, City Ra1~

Dr. E T~G! INS. zande neveral.1nquiriea: ~i) ab~It eiocationot
a fire station in Zast *nstin; (2) about a golf äourns in east Au~t1n, sad. sugge~4ed.
a site on R~~t 12th Street across frog the oea~etery ar4 another on 19th and Web- i~
berville; (3) about playgrounds and. equi~ent on the two acI~ole in vest and ruth
Austiat (ii) about street lights at 12th ~d losewood. and at 18th and Ulit. In
answer to his requests, it was etated that the fire 5tation location wag Bet at
12th end Air~~or’t Bou1e~ard, ~egarding the golf course, Mayor Glass asked that
work be started on this project as soon as pessible; but Councilman tong felt
that with other i~eeds ~in east Austin, a golf course y~u1d be too expensive now,
end that there were two golf courses already in existence now. She stated with
reference to the p1e~rground e~ip~ent, she wrnjlI talk with the president of the
School Boa’d. and with the Director of Recreation and would make a reconmendation
to the City I4an~er if son~thing could be worked out with the Sc1~ol Board. The
C1t~y Manager thought lights were already installed at the two re~’Liested locations
or if not at those locaU ens, in the vicinity. ~e thought every church b~ been
ftrniehed. street lights, and that these churches, WAL1~U~ ST~E~P B~AP!PIST CWJRCH,
lgth and Ulit, and ZION BILL ~PTIS~? CR~CX~Z~ Included in the li et.

9

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 10

June 10, 1974 - Emma Long Interview by Joe O’Neal (p. 11)
(transcript re-typed)

And the same thing about the golf the golfing. They had a big bond election
& Mayor Miller hadpromised the blacks that ~f they would help carry the
bond election, they would give them a golfcourse. So Dr. Givens came in
after the bond issue past and said, “Now we want our golfcourse. “And I
said, “That’s ridiculous, to have a golfcourse with halfa dozen blacks
playing on it. “I said, “We need that moneyfor children and parks. There ‘s
no reason in the world why you shouldn ‘t use our golfcourse. “And I moved
that everybody be allowed to use the golfcourse. Well, this surprised
everybody and it passed.

Later I was reading the paper and it amused me — remembering what
happened — I said, “You ‘ye got blacks caddying out there now and nobody
would know the d~fference.”

They built this little clubhouse 20 X 18, cement blocks, for the blacks to use
for changing clothes;for the blackpeople who played at the Municipal golf
course. I don ‘t know how long they used that, but they were going to have a
lounge and dressing rooms. And Iguess it was built. I think we took
contracts for it, and I guess I went along with it because I certainly thought
that after all they needed a place to dress and Iguess they ‘d be too timid to
dress in the clubhouse.

10

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 11

June 3, 1981 - Emma Long Interview by Anthony 0mm
(pp. 7-8) (transcript re-typed)

One ofthe bond issues in—about 1950, ‘51—right in that era— Mayor
Miller promised Dr. Givens ~f they ‘d help carry the bond issue that they
could have a golfcourse. So when it came—Dr. Givens came before city
council to askfor his golfcourse, Ijust said that was ridiculous, that we had
a golfcourse, that we had a very nice one at that time, and we didn ‘t need to
build a separate onefor the blacks. I made a motion that blacks be allowed
to use the municipal golfcourse. And it kind ofshocked everybody, but they
did let them go ahead and use the golfcourse then. And itjust kind ofdied
away and they never did build a golfcoursefor the blacks.

ORUM: That was a fairly radical thing to say in 1951.
LONG: It was either ‘50 or ‘51.
ORUM: Yes.
LONG: But it was quite unusual. And but they did. And they built them—
about severalfeetfrom the clubhouse, they built a little house where they
could dress.
ORUM: Oh, really?
LONG: Uh—Huh.
ORUM: But they had to be separate quarters?
LONG: Uh—huh. Where they could dress for their golf
ORUM: Yes.
LONG: --put on their shoes andput their bags. But I said, they’re not up
together anyway. They ‘re out strung all over the course. I don ‘t see why it
hurts anythingjust to let them use the golfcourse. But ofcourse I was
considered—I was called, very often, a red and a radical, and even a
communist.

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 12

April 13, 1982 - Emma Long Interview by Anthony 0mm (p. 72)
(transcript re-typed)

Dr. E.H. Givens was the, quote, leader of the blacks. And he worked hand
and glove with Mayor Miller, and when they ‘d have a bond issue, well he
was supposed to carry the bond issue for—over on the black area. And
they ‘d—one time they promised Dr. Givens ~fhe carried the bond issue that
they would build a golfcoursefor the blacks. And the whole bond issue
passed and Dr. Givens came in one day and said, “Well, Mayor Miller, we
want the goIfcourse that you promised us?”

And I said, “Oh, that is ridiculous. “I said, “I don ‘t see any why y ‘all can ‘t
play on the golfcourse—municipal golfcourse over here. “I said, “After all,
people trail around behind each other and they are not together. “And I
moved that we make the golfcourse so everyone can play on it, and it
passed. [Both laugh.] And that was the last of the black doctor.

12

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 13

MflU!P!S 0! Tfl~ CITY COUNCIL

CITY 0? AUS~flN, T1~AS

Regu1~r )~eetlng

April 26, 1951.
10:00 LM.

Council Chaiuber, City gall

The *eeting ae called, to order with Na’or Glase presid~tg.

R0U Call:

Present: Councilman Drake, Johnson, Long, MacCorkie, Mayor Glass
Abt~enb None

Present also: Walter E. Seahoim, City Mane~er; Trueman L O’Q~uinn, City
~btorne~~ 0. G t~evander, Director of ?~iblie Wor a; P., D. Thor~, Chief of Po
lice; W. if. Klapprotb, Traffic Zngineer.

The Councit greeted MRS. TAYLOR GTJSS and LAtJRA ELLEN GLASS who were visi’
tore.

ML lii. D. MOSTELLER yreeented. l4ayor Glass with a gun, the case for which 11
was given by Councilman Drake. 141~. JESS ~ALLMiJ presented the Mayor with a fish—h
ing tackle b~,z. MRS. GLASS and LAURA ITJL!N wale given ‘bouquets by MR. WALT~

l!tTM.~J. The Mayor thanked the oltisena of Austin for their support and wox~Ler—’~
ful aa.Ierstanding ghowft the Council, and expressed hia pleasure in serving on
the Council, Re felt that the Council. )iad. all worked. topether, and the employeesl
had worked and cooporated all the way through. h

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 14

i—a ____ ______ CiTY OF AUSTIN1 TEXAS~ VJL~

)(flVTES 01 PHI CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF AUSTIN, T!XA5

Regular Meeting

Council Cha~ber, City Hall

The eetin~ç wa~ called to order with Mayor Drake ~preeidimg,

Boll call:

Presetti Councilmen Johnson, tong, MacCorkie, Khite, Mayor Drake
Absent: None

14

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 15

May 23, 1974 - Taylor Glass Interview by Joe O’Neal (pp. 9-10)
(transcript re-typed)

I remember one day Igot a callfrom City Hall wanting to know-there
were two colored boys playing golfon the golfcourse. This was before there
was any mixing ofraces in restaurants, schools, or anywhere was going on.
So I said, “Well, I’ll be right up there.”

I called Bill Drake before I left my office, didn ‘t tell him what it was ‘till
Igot up there. He said, “Well, what is it?” I said, “Well, we’ve got two
colored boys playing golfon the golfcourse; went up there on their noon
lunch hour and they got their equipment and they ‘re halfway around the
course and they want to know what to do about it. “He said, “Well, what do
you want to do about it? “I said, “Well, Ipersonally was raised on a farm
with them, we played ball together, worked in the cotton patch together, we
were doingjust about anything you can think oftogether, rode horseback
together, anything you can think of They never did bother me and that old
golfcourse is pretty big open space out there and I don ‘t see why it ought to
bother anybody out there and I’m for leaving them alone and not even
calling the newspaper and see what happens. “And he said, “I’m with you.”

I had to call one other member of the council to see that we had a
majority and I called Mr. Johnson. I knew Mr. Johnson was just like us and
we told him how wefelt. He said, “It ‘s the wisest thing you have ever done.
Don ‘t call that press either. “So we went on and them play and never heard
a word.

Finally, six to eight weeks later I was walking down the street out here
and a friend ofmine stopped me and said, “Hey did you know there ‘s
niggers playing on the golfcourse? “ I said, “Sure, I know there ‘s niggers
playing on the golfcourse.. .1 know they ‘re playing on the golfcourse. “I
said, “Did they bother you? “He sad, “No, they didn’t bother me. “I said,
“Well, they don ‘t have a golfcourse. I knew they were playing out there; in

fact they got my Ok. They are going to play out there as far as I am
concerned. Now ~f they ‘re truly bothering you, I want to know it. I said,
“It will cost half-a-million dollars to build them a golfcourse and it’ll come
out ofyour pocket. You ‘re part ofthe taxes. And you ‘11 pay the upkeep. Now
up to this time they haven ‘tplayed a lot ofgolf Maybe because they didn ‘t
have a place to play, but they ‘re going to play golfout there ~fI
have anything to do with it. “He said, “You know, I believe you ‘re right.”
They don ‘t like to get hit in the pocket.

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 16

From: General Marshall <ggmar~sbcg1obal. net>
Date: Sun, 24 Aug 2008 21:14:00 -0700 (PDT)
To: Ken Tiemann <ktiemann~sbcglobal.net>
Subject: Re: The Integration of Muny

Ken:

The following answers are given for your questions:

1. I caddied from 1946 to 1952.

2. I did not own a set of clubs so I probably did not play until 1954 or later.
I was there to see my Geometry teacher, R.B. Timmons, Lawrence
Britton,Sr. play before the Special Clubhouse was built.

3. There were several groups of African-American golfers from other cities
who came to play Muny. I remember specifically that some had big bags
and took caddies. I felt especially proud. They came from San Antonio,
Dallas, and Houston.

4. Muny was never opened to caddies to play on any given day or days,
however, the Kizer brothers were not African American and were allowed to
play. Jack and Robert Dorsett, who lived on Enfield Road across the street
from the Practice Field (Shagging Field) also played and Robert played at
Austin High School with two of the Kizer brothers.

5. Once the course was integrated there were no restrictions for any golfers.
You showed up early and waited for tee times. I don’t remember when they
started reserving tee times.

Cliffs last name is Sneed.

I hope this information is helpful.

General

16

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



~yr

•: 1’ -

~8I ~ oun~ O~LLiY

t~i s1.t 0t~I~f ~WLZJDJV

~ ~q rrp~ ~o ~-ç~q atm. ~G

jiof) t~~0PEflW ~ ~ ~1 30 U0~0n.X~U0O 0~ 303 ~~

~o~oc~ i~ i~co o~ po~c~.~p p~ p Ct~n’9 ~ ‘~t~’ay~ P4~ ~iir~oi~o~ K

[)~ p~teoo~ ~ ~ G~O~ ~ pt~v oq ~~ Jo ~ Q?~

~1UJi~flhf ~!O 2~flD ~TL.L .w ~ttot~flo~’ ~ KM.t J~ 3Q~~ 3~

0.XOJGt Gt~. ~L0~

o~ ~Vq pu~ u-~qen ~o ~ et~. jo s~zo~ o ~°

~q pGpuo~oc~ ~ooq ~ ~ot~ 30 oo~q.~Oo~ O~. pU~ ~ ~oq pun

G~ ~ OO~e4~~ 30 1~IS 0~. ~ ~~eput~ ~ ~o p~q ~ rsr~rt~

H
OO~tQ’/ ~ t.ZU~
ooo~’c~

~ U0~~0~ ~OT~3

~ uOc~o ~~OO ~i Li
TT~P~’~I t~’~

:~&ottoJ

Z~cI ~P~L ‘~°~ ~ 3t°~D ~It0~tXUW G~ ~ Ø~EZUOt ~ 30 ~~QTh.t1~~U0O ~14q~

.xoj u~,~riy ~o £~j &i po~taoe.z ~ ~ ‘~ otrn~ uo ~

.1 ~n- ~‘.≤

LI TU~Ufl3OU

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 18

r’ i e Diamond iu i ~‘ B’d
3 hel

al ron~ i~o~e ill&
Texas [ineman

4

Shan s- e es

P~n r6ov S ~ VO
P1 ‘ Su d ______________

6 Attroc i Fabric a Assort t of Colors

18

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



61

61 1U~Wfl3OU

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 20

20

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 21

- ~L1 Y Qt~ AUSTIf4, TEXAS

M1NU~ES OF 1!~! CV~T COUNCIl

cvr~ OF A~7$TIN, ~i~XAS

Reg~iar ~eeting

June 1~, 19~l
1O~OO A,L

Counoti Chamber, Cit7 Rail

BEI~ ~

TKP~ the b1~ o~ Prank i~nde11 be aM the ~si~e i~ hereby accepted~ and.
L L Seehol; CLt~ ~4anager, is a~ithori~ed. aM d.ireote~ to execute a contract
w~tIi prank Fauidefl for the constX~uction of ~ ~unge at the Municipal Golf
Course on the bRBIS of h1~ bid. of $2,999,00.

(The City’s estimate wae ~3,5DO.OO)

The ~iotIon, seeond.ed by Counci1~a~ I~o~g1 cai~rie~. by the following vote:
Ayes: Go~mci1inen Lon~ MacCorkie, ~hite~ Mayor Drake

None
Absent: Gcuncii~an J~)~nson

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 22

CITY OP AUSTIN, ThXAS

fl~TJTES OF ThE CIPY COUNCIL

CITY OF AUSTII~, TEXAS

Be~iar Neetirig

July 3, 1952
10:00 A.M.

Council 0ba~iber, City Hail

ii
..1. ~ -~ -ur —

R,G~S.a;.e4:-b~it the~ro~otion of ue p cemen to dete~ve~..Th~
City ~nager ~tated this was vorkea tmder Civil Service regulations, indno
differences were ~nade with regard to the color line. DR. GIVENS introduced a ec
teacher, Miss Si~it12, who a*ecl for a light at Airport Boulevard and 12th Street
and ror i~ater, and bus service in Cedar VaUey. DL GIVENS stated the colored
golfers at the Municipal Golf Course were wable to buy cold drinks; that the
facilities for re~tere~hrnents were not ava~iable to them. The City Manager state
cold drinks and refreshments were available, andhad been all the tii~ie; tbatdrinks could be purchased at the window provided, and the players could take the
to the lounge that had bee2i provided, Dli, GIVENS asked that somethii~ be done
about moving the Incinerator; that 6treet lights be placed on the corner of l7th~
and Chestnut,

4’]

22

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 23

cc

.4.. ¶. ...,

23

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 24

BriefRemarks by Marvin P. Dawkins at the Opening Ceremony ofthe Muny
Interfaith GolfTournament in Austin, Texas, October 26, 2008.

The place that the Lions Municipal Golf Course (Muny) of Austin, Texas

occupied during the first phase of the Civil Rights Movement in the early 1950s

has not been documented as a part of the historical literature of that period.

Scholars who have examined efforts to desegregate public facilities during that

period tend to focus on situations where open resistance was encountered when

African Americans attempted to gain access to segregated public facilities,

including recreational parks, beaches and golf courses. Therefore, the scholarly

research literature on efforts, both successful and unsuccessful, to desegregate

public golf courses in cities throughout the South during the 1 950s and 1 960s

has tended to concentrate on cities where massive, open, and ongoing resistance

took place. As a result, when desegregation occurred without this type of

resistance, which was the situation involving Muny, less attention has been

focused on these cases. Thus, the desegregation of the Lions Municipal Golf

Course in 1951 has not part of the historical record involving the push to

desegregate municipal golf courses, which has tended to focus on cases where

law suits were filed to end segregation.

24

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



I believe that the evidence which has now been assembled substantiates the

contention that Muny was the first municipal golf course in the South to

formally desegregate, thus, replacing the public courses in Atlanta which

currently hold this distinction. The tournament today can be viewed as a

celebration of Muny’s unique place in history and a testament to the role it has

played and continues to play as a venue for creating positive interaction among

people of various racial and ethnic backgrounds and in nurturing a sense of

community cohesion. Thank you and enjoy the tournament.

25

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Document 25

From: “Dawkins, Marvin” <mdawkins@miami.edu>
To: <bozer@grandecom.net>
Cc: <mpdawkins(~bel1south.net>
Sent: Wednesday, November 26, 2008 2:01 PM
Subject: Statement to support Application for Muny landmark designation

Bob,

You have my permission to use the statement below for formal applications
submitted for landmark designation, historical landmark status or other
similar purposes:

This statement is written to support the contention that The Lions
Municipal Golf Course (Muny) in Austin, Texas was the first municipal golf
course in the South to permit Blacks to play golf on an equal basis with
whites. Despite the prevailing custom of segregating of public facilities
by race, which was supported by laws and the doctrine of “separate but
equal” under the U.S. Supreme Court ruling of 1896 in Plessy v. Ferguson,
the early 1950s saw the eroding of barriers to maintaining segregation in
the face of both legal and direct challenges by or on behalf of African
Americans. In the case of public golf courses, resistance to such
challenges was the norm. While most of the legal challenges to segregated
municipal golf courses filed before the landmark Brown Decision of 1954
(beginning as early as 1949) were unsuccessful, the legal foundation for
maintaining segregation began to weaken as early as 1950 after the Supreme
Court ruling in Sweatt v. Painter made it less feasible, economically, to
continue to segregate. Yet, in most cities where direct challenges to the
segregation of public golf courses and other facilities were mounted,
resistance continued. However, in an exception to this pattern, the
public officials in Austin, Texas decided not to respond to the direct
challenge in 1951 by two Black patrons, who gained entry to the Muny golf
course and were allowed to complete a round of golf play without incident.
This decision by Austin city officials in the case of the municipal golf
course coincided with actions to desegregate other public facilities
(e.g., the fire department and library), thus, establishing Austin’s

26

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



uniquely progressive response in the shadow of the Sweatt Decision, a case
that originated in Austin (at the University of Texas Law School). These
unique circumstances leading to the desegregation of the Lions Municipal
Golf Course sets it apart from other cities where resistance to both
direct and legal challenges have been well documented (see for example:
Rice v. Arnold, Holmes v. Atlanta, and other cases). Muny has enjoyed the
longest record of a desegregated golf course on an uninterrupted basis.
The consequence as been the establishment of mutually beneficial,
long-term, cross-racial contacts and friendships that have been sustained
by participating in the sport of golf in the informal setting of the Lions
Municipal Golf Course (a subject which, itself, deserves further study as
an example of the long-term benefits of sport and race relations)

I have thoroughly examined the sources that were used to establish the
detailed historical record on which the brief decription above was based
and feel that the evidence meets scholarly standards to justify the
conclusions reached as being sound and appropriate. Sources included
public documents and other records, newspaper clippings, personal
communications (written and oral), recorded interviews, oral history
interviews, among other sources.

Although I am not a historian by profession, I have received training in
both qualitative and quantitative approaches to research and been engaged
in interdisciplinary work for more than 25 years. Although the focus of my
formal training leading to the Ph.D. in sociology (Florida State
University, 1971-75) and postodoctoral research in school desegregation
effects (Johns Hopkins University, 1979-80) was quantitatively oriented, I
received further training in historical research methods as a National
Endowment for the Humanities Summer Institute Fellow (1990) at Duke

University (Center for Documentary Studies and Department of History).

27

Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am



Last Updated 12-16-08 at 9:22am


	Item 1
	Item 2
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 10
	Item 11
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 17
	Item 18
	Item 19
	Item 20
	Item 21
	Item 22
	Item 23
	Item 25
	Item 26
	Item 27
	Item 29
	Item 31
	Item 32
	Item 33
	Item 34
	Item 35
	Item 36
	Item C2
	Added Item A2
	Corporations



